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Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group”) is an established operator of department stores based in the PRC. The Group
operates two "“lifestyle” department stores under the brand of Jiuguang in Shanghai
and Suzhou respectively, with middle to upper-end market positioning in the PRC.
Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, which have differentiated themselves with
appealing product and brand portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping
experiences, are the most sought-after shopping destinations in the region. The
Group's department stores offer a wide variety of goods catered to customer needs
and a pleasant shopping environment. The Group also operates supermarkets in the
PRC. In an effort to diversify its operations, the Group owns a strategic stake in Beiren
Group, a leading retailer group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province in the PRC.

With a view to focusing its resources on its principal department store business, the
Group disposed its Hong Kong-based Japanese restaurant “Wa San Mai” in July 2018,
and closed two loss-making restaurants in Shanghai and Suzhou, respectively. In the
light of the large retail market and strong spending power of consumers in Shanghai,
Lifestyle China is in the process of developing a new commercial complex in Daning,
Shanghai (“the Daning Project”), which will house the Group’s second Jiuguang
department store in Shanghai. The development of the Daning Project is targeted to
be completed in 2019. Upon commencement of operation, the Daning Project is
expected to boost the Group's market presence and further enhance its brand equity
in Shanghai. With the Group's strong financial position and unparalleled brand equity,
the Group is always prepared to take on new investment opportunities to facilitate the
long-term sustainable growth and looks forward to generating better returns for
shareholders in the long run.
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The escalating Sino-US trade tensions during the year has caused the
Chinese economy to slow down and adversely affected consumer
confidence. To cope with the situation, the Chinese government has been
adopting measures and policies with an aim to stimulate domestic
demand and investments since the later part of 2018, including the
reduction of various taxes and fees.

Competition in China’s retail market has been intensifying and new
challenges arise almost every day. New shopping mall openings have
taken away traffic footfall on one hand and the rapid evolution of
technology has also changed consumer behavior on the other. To take on
the challenges, Lifestyle China Group Limited (”Lifestyle China” or the
"Company”, which together with its subsidiaries, is referred to as the
"Group”) stepped up its promotional and marketing efforts (including
precision marketing) to boost consumer sentiment at its department
stores. By enriching its product assortments to better satisfy the demand of
the targeted markets for mid-range and high-end goods, and leveraging
mobile internet-enabled applications on handsets to accommodate to the
growing popularity of digital transactions, all these moves are to retain
customers.

Notwithstanding the downward pressure exerted by China’s economic
slowdown, the Group's business remained relatively stable and recorded
RMB1,183.8 million of turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018. Net
profit of the Group increased by 25.4% to RMB338.1 million and the
increase was, mainly attributable to an increase in the share of profit from
investment in associates and the recording of an exchange gain rather
than an exchange loss in 2017. Earnings per share for 2018 have increased
by 32.1% to RMBO0.222 and the Board has resolved not to declare any
dividend for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) ¥ [F 3R & (&)

To optimize its operations, the Group disposed and closed its restaurant
business. In addition, the Group kept enriching its product assortment and
conducting promotional and marketing campaigns at both the Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang during the year. To further enhance its
market presence in Shanghai, the Group has been working on developing
its retail and commercial complex in Daning, Jing'an District, Shanghai and
the project is expected to be completed before the end of 2019.

The Group's strategic investment in Beiren Group, a well-established
Shijiazhuang-based retailer, has delivered better than expected results in
2018, thanks to its dominant market position and strong brand equity. The
share of profit from this investment remained substantial and important to
the Group as it accounted for 60.3% of the profit attributable to owners of
the Company for 2018.

Prospect for China's retail sector in 2019 is clouded by the country’s
slowing economic growth.

Against the backdrop of an challenging macroeconomic environment
which is also complicated by the intensifying competition and the
changing consumption pattern induced by the increasing popularity of
e-commerce and the emergence of the younger generation as an
important consumer group. Nevertheless, consumers’ growing preference
for trendy and quality goods also means opportunity for the Group's
business through launching mobile internet-enabled application that
serves its VIP club members and enhances their shopping experience. The
change will also fit in the Group’s plan for putting in place a retail
management system that will enable collection of data about customers’
consumption pattern and preferences, with an aim to help the Group
adjusting its product assortment and carrying out precision marketing and
promotional activities in the fast-changing market. All these measures will
enable the Group to engage with its existing VIP club members, enhance
customer loyalty and attract more young people as its customers.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to look for investment opportunities
that can generate better returns to shareholders and provide the Group
with sustainable growth.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my appreciation to all
members of our management team and our staff for their endeavour and
contributions to the Group’s development. | would also like to thank our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their unswerving
support.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

4 March 2019

@ﬁ‘ﬁﬁahj = 1\/7/
%W

\Jf%

BREBHELEEB LEARERENELEEN
AEBRFRRBEEERMES R EBAX
&ﬁ)llf&%z&«ﬂﬁﬁ‘& 2 GHE S o AE— I N
Am%f CAEEBRIR LSRR AER

&?ﬁ%i?é\‘%;of HEBHR -_Z—hF
JETDI°

AEEREAREZERENTERILASER
BREUIRE - LAEBBRERTSIEE ZEH
i ARBERABARNMERIME  MRZZT—N
FMEREMAEMNES - RELKRENESR
MEREEMSEKAEARANEREE BE
EARREHEE AR ZZE— \FREIEHEFF60.3% °

h AR A
FLRE -

E—NFTEXENR

RELERT M - MEFHERIR - it
EFRHEABERNES —RIEBEXNRIEERE
Eﬁﬁ STHEEAGNE  SBRAEREM-

OHBEAREHMEEEMNETERBRE
EJZ%ZIKEI&XPW% BBELBEEEAER
B UREESRIRT - EARENEYER -
BRABETTEEAEENSHETHTEERRSL
HES  BAKBUREBRTHEEAREFNE
B BAKERRESENTETREARAES
FETRENEHMER TS ABED - ZEH
EREASEEREEES8ETEY  BIHE
BENEHRE YRS ESFFARREEENE

P
o
=

BRI AEESEES R SRR REE
Bl AR BA KBS RAIFEIERANTERSE -

RARRREFE RO RN 2B E R E K
ABREIMNE MR AREBROER
WHEE  EBEHERRBETBHRFRT
HERHE -

ElE
ETEREFNTE
—hF=ZAMA



Market Overview

The outbreak during the year of the Sino-U.S. trade disputes has brought
negative impact to China’s economy, causing the country’s gross domestic
product growth to decelerating to 6.6% in 2018 from 6.9% in 2017. This,
coupled with the Chinese government’s measures aimed for deleveraging,
has dampened consumer sentiment in China. As such, the country’s retail
sales growth has slowed to 9% in 2018 from 10.2% in 2017 and retail sales
for China’s department store segment rose by 3.2% in 2018, decelerating
from the 6.7% growth in 2017. Meanwhile, retail sales growth in the
supermarket segment also slowed down to 6.8% in 2018 from 7.3% in
2017.

In addition to the macroeconomic challenges, conventional brick-and-
mortar business of retailing has been facing intensifying competition from
electronic or mobile commerce, which has been gaining popularity rapidly
from consumers, especially the younger generation. The young people,
who are more conscious on trends, have become an important consumer
group. This also means consumer preferences and patterns are changing
rapidly. To cope with this situation, conventional retailers have been
stepping up marketing and promotional efforts and adopting different
measures to try differentiating themselves from competitors, including
enhancing market positioning and product assortment, and also
embracing the online-to-offline business model.

Financial Review for 2018

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the business
performance of the Group remained steady compared with that for 2017
despite the downward pressure exerted by China’s economic slowdown.
The resilient performance of the Group was attributable to the Group's
promotional and marketing efforts in an attempt to boost consumer
sentiment and, ultimately ended up spending more at its department
stores. This inevitably required higher budgets on sales and marketing
expenses. During the year, the Group also rationalized its operations by
closing down its loss-making China-based restaurants and selling its Hong
Kong-based restaurant to Lifestyle International Holdings Limited in July
2018 to allow management to focus resources on the department store
operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 57 i & 247 (&)

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2018, turnover of the Group remained
relatively flattish at RMB1,183.8 million when compared to 2017 amid
China's credit tightening measures and escalating China-U.S. trade
tensions in the second half of 2018. The Group was able to deliver solid
performance thanks to its seasoned management team and strong brand
equity. With effective marketing and promotions and optimized product
mix, the Group's two department stores, namely Shanghai Jiuguang and
Suzhou Jiuguang managed to grow the average ticket size
notwithstanding the intensifying market competition and decelerating
growth of China’s economy during the year. In particular, the strong sales
of cosmetics products remained a key driver to the turnover growth. The
Group's net sales proceeds remained stable at RMB3,228.7 million.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

The Group's gross profit amounted to RMB808.6 million in 2018 and the
gross profit margin as a percentage of net sales proceeds was
approximately 25.0%, comparing to 26.1% in 2017. Gross profit margin as a
percentage of turnover decreased slightly to 68.3%, comparing to 70.8% in
2017. Average concessionaire rate was stable at approximately 22.1%,
similar to that in 2017, as the Group implemented precision marketing
strategies and enhanced its brand assortment and merchandise mix to
provide customers with the ultimate shopping experience.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group's net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for 2018
increased 25.4% to RMB338.1 million. While the Group's operating profit
from core department store operations was down slightly from last year,
the increase in profit was mainly attributable to (i) growth in share of profit
from investment in associate (after share of non-controlling interests) of
approximately RMB30.4 million, (ii) increase in interest and investment
income of approximately RMB16.4 million and (iii) last year's profit was
weighed down by an exchange loss of RMB36.6 million whereas it was an
exchange gain of about RMBO0.5 million this year.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group decreased by 15.4%
to RMB487.8 million from RMB576.6 million in 2017, which was largely
attributable to certain staff costs being reallocated from selling costs to
administrative expenses. The Group's aggregate selling and distribution
expenses as a percentage of total sales proceeds however remained
relatively stable at approximately 15.1% in 2018 (2017: 17.4%) although the
marketing and promotion expenses have increased due to market
competition.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's general administrative expenses increased by 57.7% to
approximately RMB157.1 million, as compared to RMB99.6 million
recorded in 2017. The increase was largely attributable to the reallocation
of staff costs from selling and distribution expenses to administrative
expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B/ & 24 (&)

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) remained stable at RMB168.7
million during the year. While increase in salary and wages during the year
was largely in line with the market trend, the stable staff cost was a result of
a reduction in the headcounts. The total number of full-time staff of the
Group at the end of 2018 was 1,216 as compared to 1,371 at the end of
2017.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses comprise mainly management fee, credit
card charges and other miscellaneous incomes received from the
counters/tenants, other sundry incomes and exchange gain/loss. The
increase was mainly attributable to the turnaround from the exchange loss
of RMB36.6 million in 2017 to an exchange gain of RMBO0.5 million during
the year on the Group’s bank balances which are denominated in United
States Dollars and Hong Kong dollars as RMB has weakened against these
two currencies towards the end of the year as comparing to the beginning
of the year.

Interest and Investment Income

The interest and investment income increased by 31.1% to RMB69.2
million (2017: RMB52.8 million) for the year was mainly as a result of the
increase in deposit rates and higher yields from the Group's bank deposit
and structured deposits.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance cost consisted mainly of interests incurred on bank
borrowings. The aggregate amount of interests incurred, before
capitalization, was approximately RMB77.8 million (2017: RMB54.0 million)
for the year under review. The increase comparing to the previous year was
mainly due to increase in the total bank borrowings for funding capex of
the Daning project. No finance costs has been charged to the profit and
loss account (2017: RMB3.3 million) as all the interests incurred were
qualified for capitalization purpose.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's EBITDA before share of results of associates and a joint
venture and fair value change of financial investments, exchange gains or
losses and other non-recurring items for the year decreased from
RMB427.5 million in 2017 to approximately RMB387.8 million, mainly due
to decrease in business turnover and margin pressure. As at 31 December
2018, the Group's net debt (defined as cash and bank balances less total
bank borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries and amount due to a joint venture) amounted to
approximately RMB630.5 million, while it was RMB229.1 million in 2017.
The higher net debt position was mainly attributable to increased bank
borrowings for funding capex for Daning project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 57 i & 247 (&)

The Group's bank balances and cash amounted to approximately
RMB1,536.4 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,280.8 million) as at 31
December 2018, of which RMB19.1 million, denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, was kept in Hong Kong, with the balance being kept in mainland
China of which approximately 11.2% was denominated in United States
dollars and the remaining 88.8% was in denominated in Renminbi. The
increase in cash at banks as compared to end of 2017 was a result of the
Group's net proceed from disposal of structured deposits and listed equity
securities in Hong Kong amounting to approximately RMB315.6 million,
which was classified as financial assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's secured bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB2,109.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,375.2
million), bearing interest calculated with reference to benchmark lending
rates of the People’s Bank of China. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
had aggregate un-utilised banking facilities of approximately RMB341.0
million (31 December 2017: RMB1,074.8 million). The Group’s debt to
equity ratio (defined as bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to
the owners of the Company) was 23.3% (31 December 2017: 15.2%) as at
the year end.

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is Renminbi, in which most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated. As described under the “Liquidity and Financial Resources”
section above, certain portion of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies (Hong Kong dollar and
United States dollar) other than Renminbi. Given the fact that majority of
the Group's revenue and expenses as well as borrowings and capital
expenditures are denominated in Renminbi, and the Hong Kong dollar
cash balance kept in Hong Kong is for settling operating expenses outside
of mainland China, the Group currently does not need a comprehensive
foreign currency hedging policy. Management will however monitor the
Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider taking appropriate
measures to mitigate any potential significant foreign currency risks should
the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain of the Group's
(i) property, plant and equipment in the PRC of RMB2,337 million
(31 December 2017: RMB1,813 million), (ii) prepaid lease payments in the
PRC with carrying value of approximately RMB1,772 million (31 December
2017: RMB1,821 million) and (iii) properties under development with
carrying value of approximately RMB1,044 million (31 December 2017:
RMB924 million) to secure bank borrowings of the Group with carrying
value of approximately RMB2,109 million (2017: RMB1,375 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B/ & 24 (&)

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

To streamline the structure of the Group for better utilisation of available
resources, on 31 July 2018, the Group discontinued its restaurant business
by ceasing its restaurant operation in the PRC and disposing of its 100%
interest in Global Top Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary which
operated Wa San Mai, a Japanese restaurant in Hong Kong, to a subsidiary
of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$52.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB43.8 million). The
transaction was completed on the same date and the net proceed from
the disposal was used for general working capital to develop its core
department stores and retail relating business in the PRC. The gain on the
disposal amounted in aggregate to approximately RMB43.2 million and
has been treated as a contribution from the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company as both the Company and Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling shareholder.

Save for the disposal mentioned above, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal during the year.

Review of Operations

To cope with the weakened consumer sentiment, competition from
neighbouring shopping malls and changes to the consumption pattern
induced by new technology, the Group pressed on with its promotional
and marketing campaigns, further oriented its product assortment towards
the mid-range and high-end markets, and leveraged mobile internet-
enabled applications on handsets to attract footfall to its department
stores. All these measures are aimed at reinforcing its brand image as an
operator of department stores that better meet the needs of a burgeoning
middle class in economically vibrant cities, thus differentiating the Group
from its competitors.

Shanghai Jiuguang

The Group’s Shanghai Jiuguang recorded a 2.2% decrease in sales
proceeds in 2018. The average daily footfall decreased by 1.6% to around
50,100 visitors as the opening of a new shopping mall nearby drew away
some consumers. While the stay-and-buy ratio decreased by 2.6
percentage points to 37.1%, the average ticket size increased by 8.4% to
RMB437 as the Group stepped up its effort to orient its product
assortment to the mid-range and high-end markets. Among different
product categories, turnover from direct sales of cosmetics products were
notably the strongest and rose by 30%. The Group also pressed ahead
with promotional and marketing campaigns, including activities for its club
members, to boost up sales, especially during major festive periods. The
moves proved to be successful as we saw revenue at Shanghai Jiuguang
rose to a record high of RMB50.9 million on the New Year Eve. In 2018, the
average concessionaire rate collected by the store remained stable at
approximately 23.4% (2017: 23.7%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 57 i & 247 (&)

Suzhou Jiuguang

Suzhou Jiuguang, which is positioned as a department store that meets
the needs of a growing middle class in a second-tier city, stepped up its
effort to orient its product assortment to the local lifestyle. It also
continued to conduct promotional activities on festivals to boost sales and
revenue hit a record high of RMB12.9 million on the Singles’ Day on 11
November. In 2018, average ticket size saw an increase of 4.0% to RMB416
while the average daily footfall has dropped 11.4% to about 20,200 visitors.
The decline in the foot traffic was caused by the opening of a new
shopping mall in the city center of Suzhou. Business of the Suzhou
Jiuguang remained stable and recorded 0.7% decrease in sales proceeds
in 2018. While the stay-and-buy ratio saw an increase of 3.2 percentage
points to 42.4%, the average concessionaire rate collected by the store
dropped to 18.8% from 19.3% in the year 2017.

Dalian Jiuguang

Dalian Jiuguang ceased operation at the end of 2016 and by the end of
2018, all leases had ended and there were no more tenants in the
premises. While it will continue to incur negative cash flows in up-keeping
the property, the Group is closely monitoring viable opportunities to
improve the return on the property.

Standalone Freshmart Operation

Freshmart, which sells high-quality food and confectionary products as a
standalone operation of the Group at a rented premise in Changning,
Shanghai, continued to face growing competition in the neighboring area.
By reducing the portion of direct sales and increasing the portion of
concessionaire sales, the Group managed to achieve a similar level of sales
revenue in 2018 comparing to 2017 but the operation continued to suffer
from negative cash flows in 2018 due to increase in rental.

Interest in Associates

Beiren Group, a well-established Shijiazhuang-based retailer in which the
Group maintains a strategic equity interest, recorded a low single digit
growth in sales proceeds in 2018, with a slight increase in its gross profit
margin. Net profit (after share of non-controlling interests) attributable to
the Group saw an increase of 18.1% to RMB204.0 million and the share of
profit from this investment remained important to the Group as it
accounted for 60.3% of the profit attributable to owners of the Company in
2018.

Restaurant Business

The Group during the year rationalized its operations by closing its two
loss-making Japanese restaurants under the brand of “Wa San Mai”, which
were respectively located in Shanghai and Suzhou. The Group also sold its
Hong Kong-based Japanese restaurant under the same brand to Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited in July 2018. The Group’s restaurant
business in aggregate recorded sales revenue of RMB41.9 million for the
first seven months before the operations were ceased on 31 July 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B/ & 24 (&)

Business Expansion

The construction of the Group's retail and commercial complex in Daning,
Jingan District, Shanghai is expected to be completed around the end of
2019. The project comprises a large retail complex, which will house the
Group's second Jiuguang store in Shanghai, and two office blocks. The
commercial complex, at completion, is expected to boost the Group's
business presence and further enhance its brand equity in Shanghai.

Outlook and Plan

The escalating Sino-U.S. trade tensions has caused a slowdown in the
global economy and China in particular has been hard hit, affected also
the country’s retail sales in 2018. While the Chinese government has lately
implemented counter measures to help enterprises and to restore market
confidence, the prospect for business in 2019 is still far from clear and
clouded by the development of the Sino-U.S. trade disputes and other
external uncertainties in the global market.

Apart from the unfavourable macroeconomic headwinds, the Group’s
business is facing industrial risks that its department stores are constantly
under the threats of growing competition from other newly opened
shopping malls in their localities. Moreover, the Group also needs to adapt
itself to the changes in consumption pattern induced by the emergence of
the younger consumer group that is particularly and increasingly
tech-savvy. However, China's consumption upgrade also presents
opportunities to the Group as a leading market participant.

To take on the challenges and grasp the opportunity, the Group will forge
ahead with its ongoing efforts, namely promotional activities to increase
footfall at its stores, precision marketing to increase both the efficiency and
effectiveness of its sales and marketing campaigns geared towards
different targeted consumer groups, as well as enriching the product
assortment to better meet the needs of the targeted markets for mid-
range and high-end products. To serve its VIP club members better and to
further enhance their shopping experience, the Group is preparing to
launch a mobile internet-enabled application that runs on a social media
platform enabling a number of functions including conversion of
consumption points earned from purchases to coupons, advertisement of
products and services, and themed marketing and promotional activities.
This will also fit in the Group's plan for a retail management system that
will enable collection of data about customers’ consumption pattern and
preferences so that it will be able to adjust its product assortment and
carry out precision marketing and promotional activities. Such measures
are aimed to help the Group to closely engage with its existing VIP club
members and to ultimately enhance customer loyalty.

The Group will continue to roll out measures with the aim to boosting the
Group's sales revenue and generating better returns to shareholders. It will
also continue to seek opportunities for investment that can lead to
sustainable growth of the Group.
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Report Scope
The Board of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the "Group”) believes that the
business of the Group is closely linked to the environment and society in

various ways, and we will disclose and report matters that we believe are

relevant and important to the Group'’s mission.

Business philosophy

As a premier department store operator, we regard integrity as our core

value and we believe that the Group’s presence and prosperity is

interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the

following philosophy in conducting our business:

1.

Customers: our mission is to operate one-stop department stores, so
that our customers can enjoy a pleasant shopping experience.

Employees: our employees are our most precious asset and we treat
them with fairness and respect and maintain a working environment
to unleash their full potentials.

Business partners: we do business with our partners with integrity
and fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same time, we
expect and encourage our business partners to embrace high
standards of corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

Community: we are dedicated to serve and contribute to the
communities in which our business is operated.

Shareholders: we endeavor to create sustainable returns to our
shareholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 1815 # &R &8 R % (&)

Governance Structure

The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to environment, social and governance aspects and is
also in charge of supervising their implementation.

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Committee comprises the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group and senior members from various
relevant operating departments, and is responsible for the formulation,
implementation and daily governance of the overall ESG strategies of the
Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating departments as well as the collecting and reporting of the
relevant information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit
the relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the ESG aspects
to the Board on a regular basis. They also endeavour to continuously
improve the reporting mechanism in relation to the ESG aspects, which will
allow the Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the ESG
aspects of various operating aspects of the Group and their subsequent
implementation and follow-up progress, as well as the relevant
governance system and measures in relation to the potential risks of the
ESG aspects of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the ESG aspects more effectively
and monitor the relevant potential risk in relation to the ESG aspects, the
ESG Committee will, on case by case basis, hold regular or irregular
meetings to assess, formulate and fine-tune the relevant strategies.
Regular meeting will also be held with subunits under the ESG Committee
to follow-up on the implementation of the relevant policies and standards
of various operating aspects in terms of the objectives in relation to the
ESG aspects. Meanwhile, the ESG Committee will also collaborate with the
relevant departments such as legal and audit on timely basis to assess the
risks of the Group potentially involved in the relevant aspects and
formulate corresponding responsive and control measures.

As the startup stage for the Group's implementation of the strategies in
relation to the ESG aspects, the ESG Committee will be continuously
monitoring the trends and changes of development in relation to the ESG
aspects, as well as striving to promote an effective incorporation of the
strategies in relation to the ESG aspects into the daily decision making and
operating aspects of the Group. It is the belief of the Group that under the
fully collaboration of various operating departments, the effort made by
the Group will strenuously ensure a high level of corporate responsibility
standard in relation to the ESG aspects attained by the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

Environment

Emissions

While creating economic value to the society with an aim to minimise the
impact of our business to the environment, the Group dedicate our effort
to establishing sustainable development and act as a responsible
corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To achieve these
objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure that correct
decisions and executions are made at all levels of our operation.

To contribute environmentally sustainable development, the Group are
committed to:
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eliminating resources wasting misconduct

minimizing uses of scarce resources and energy

promoting environmental protection and conservation
awareness

setting sustainable and measurable environmental
protection targets

The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen, construction and
household wastes. We focus on measuring and reporting carbon reduction
results and promoting waste reduction at source. In this connection, the
Group strictly comply with relevant legislative requirements on sewage and
waste disposal, and appoint government approved professional firms to
carry out recycling treatment, so as to implement effective environmental
management system standards. Regular inspections on the Group's
operations are conducted by relevant government environmental
protection authorities. The result of annual government inspection on all
relevant sewage and waste disposal for the financial year 2018 was passed
and complied with government standards.

KPI'A1.1: There are 8 types of emissions including air pollutant, kitchen
waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater, construction waste,
sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total emission and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2018 was 406,790.49 tonnes and 1.33 tonnes/
sqg.m. respectively.

KPlI A1.2: The greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2018 was 50,776.47 tonnes
and 0.17 tonnes/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2018 was 375.72 tonnes and 1.23 kg/sg.m. respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 1815 # &R &8 R % (&)

KPI' A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2018 was 406,414.77 tonnes and 1.33 tonnes/
sg.m. respectively.

KPI A1.5: The measures taken to mitigate emissions and their results for
the financial year 2018 are as follows:

—  we strived to minimise carbon impact to the surrounding area by
adopting environmental friendly construction processes.

—  we strived to use environmental friendly products and services for our
decoration and renovation projects in order to minimise the creation
of harmful substance. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmental friendly and energy saving
products which are approved by relevant government authorities,
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which
must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.

KPI A1.6: Handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, its
measurement and results of waste reduction of the Group for the financial
year 2018 are as follows:

—  Set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the Government’s “Pollutant discharge standard
for urban sewage treatment plant”.

—  Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
established an effective waste management approach to ensure that
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and engage
government approved professional firms with relevant expertise to

carry out separation, recycling and removal of waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

—  Food wastages mainly came from our catering tenants and staff
canteen. The Group provides guidance to our catering tenants and
employees to promote food waste prevention by reducing
unnecessary production and consumption. At the same time, the
Group has procedures in place on collection and treatment of food
waste which are in accordance with the principles and requirements
as set by the government. As opposed to dumpling, land filling or
selling food waste in an illegal manner, we will engage the municipal
city government approved professional firms to carry out collection
and removal of food waste.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimizing the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
the energy efficiency and minimise the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI A2.1: The Group's direct and indirect energy consumption by type for
the financial year 2018 was 59,355,545 kWh of electricity; 127,771 cubic
meters of natural gas consumption, and 12,760 tonnes of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, the energy consumption intensity was
194.47kWh/sq.m., 0.42 cubic meter/sq.m. and 0.04 tonnes/sqg.m.
respectively.

KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the
financial year 2018 was 495,726 tonnes and 1.62 tonnes/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A2.3: Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration systems,
plumbing and drainage systems, ELV system and I.T facilities within the
Group's department stores/buildings. The Group's initiatives on improving
the efficiency of energy use and the results achieved for the financial year
2018 are as follows:

—  Energy saving and environmental friendliness of equipment are the
important evaluation criteria in outsourcing and procuring new
equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to those energy
saving and environmental friendly products in our general
procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile, energy
saving and environmental friendly related requirements are also
applied to the entire tendering process. In 2018, the original helical
rotary unit at our Shanghai store was modified to a high efficiency,
energy saving and environmental friendly centrifugal heat pump unit
as planned to further improve its energy efficiency. Also,
enhancement was made on the cold and hot recycling water system
of the air-conditioned system to improve cold/heat generation
efficiency of the air-conditioned system. In 2018, the chillers plants at
our Suzhou store was installed with two set of inverter equipment to
better reduce energy consumption.
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—  To substantially reduce the power energy consumption, the Group is
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lightings in shops and office area to reduce power consumption. In
2018, the new and existing tenants in Shanghai store adopted LED
lightings as lighting sources for their renovation. In 2018, intelligent
power meters with related parts and accessories were installed for
all tenants at our Suzhou store, to facilitate real time monitoring of
electricity current control, electricity level pre-warning and reducing
of electricity dissipation.

—  To improve the energy consumption efficiency of the piping and
drainage systems, the Group carried out transformation and
improvement works on the sewage pump system of the water
collection wells. In 2018, a thorough dredging and cleaning was
conducted for all sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment of
sales floors at our Shanghai store to improve the efficiency of the
drainage system. In the meantime, in 2018, pipings of all water
collecting wells, sewage wells and grease traps at basement second
floor and the sewage piping of four floors of food and beverage
area at Suzhou store were installed with corrosive resistant pipes to
eliminate the relevant safety hazard and maintain the normal
operation of on-site facilities and equipment. Also, maintenance or
replacement has been made to the relevant check valves to ensure
the smooth drainage of water sources.

—  As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environment
friendly practice, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction. In 2017, our Shanghai store
completed the carbon emission task assigned by the Shanghai
Municipal Government. In 2018, we bulit on the outstanding energy
saving performance achieved in 2017. For the whole year of 2018,
when compared to 2017, the annual energy saving was
approximately 170 tonnes of standard coal, and it is expected that
an energy saving incentive of approximately RMB100,000 will be
awarded by the government. Meanwhile, our Suzhou store also
successfully passed the government'’s carbon emission verification of
building for that year.

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
Water efficiency enhancement initiatives adopted by the Group in the
financial year 2018 and their results are as follows:

— In 2018, our Shanghai store completed the renovation work for the
main incoming water pipe next to the walking street and the
replacement work for general water tank valve of the stores. This can
avoid wasting in relation to water resources and enhance the water
consumption efficiency.

e China Group Limited
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— In 2018, our Suzhou store made optimization and replacement for
the aged and damaged parts of water valve, water saving device,
tap and water drainage pipe of 26 toilets of the building, which can
reduce or control water leaking and avoid wasting in relation to
water resources and enhance the water consumption efficiency.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group supports environmental protection and implementating the
greening of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assess
the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the impact of our
business operation to the surrounding environment so that appropriate
improvement actions could be taken promptly. These measures include
the use of energy-efficient lightings and environmentally friendly paper,
paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings, computers and electrical
appliances and other facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is
also committed to promoting the use of recycle paper and shopping bags
made of recycle paper in our stores.

KPI' A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of the Group's operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and emphasise
green operation and green office. Policies and measures are implemented
to enhance energy conservation and emission reduction management.
Relevant policies and measures taken in 2018 are as follows:

—  In 2018, the Group upgraded electronic office automation systems to
optimize office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group's paperless office
operation.

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files. In 2018, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores when necessary. At the same time, printing facilities are being
adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted to minimise
environmental pollution resulting from improper waste disposal.

—  To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, the Group uses
recycled paper bags instead of traditional packaging bags, and
provides customers with recycled paper bags produced with
recycled paper to improve recycling habits. We take appropriate
measures to comply with “General Technical Requirements of the
environmental protection, safety and labelling for plastic shopping
bags” and “Notice on restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of
plastic bags” issued by the government. Reduction on plastic bag
consumption, aiming to reduce wastes, was achieved through
charging customers for plastic bags, and provide plastic bags when
necessary to ensure reasonable usage.
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—  Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials and energy
efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect of the
design of our office and stores, the Group adopts open atrium
design to maximise the use of natural light and share lightings in
common areas, and utilising existing furniture and resources where
possible during renovations, to tie in with environmental-friendly
philosophy.

—  In 2018, new project of the Group located in Jing’an District continued to
focus on the importance of green, environmental protection and energy
saving in the whole project development, design and construction. The
project meets the requirements of “green building” in many aspects
such as land-saving and outdoor environment, energy saving and
energy utilisation, water-saving and water resource utilisation, resource-
saving materials and materials utilisation, indoor environmental quality
and operation management. The Group aims to achieve a harmonious
development of people, buildings and the natural environment. While
utilising natural resources and handmade means to create a good and
healthy living and entertainment environment, we aim to controlling and
minimising the use and destruction of the natural environment.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

As of 31 December 2018, we had 1,216 employees.

As an employer of equal opportunities, the Group's employment policy
aims to provide a working environment where there is no discrimination on
the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and establishing a sound and
quality work environment to attract talents. All applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fairness.

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a
comprehensive performance appraisal management system and regularly
communicates with employees to ensure its transparency and fairness.
Through the assessment of employees’ job performance, employ and
promote these with common values and professional ethics, and recognise
employees who are self-motivated, responsible and honest in order to
ensure the continued improvement of the Group's business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to local labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account of employees’
performance and experience to ensure that competitive remuneration
package are being offered so as to motivate continuous improvement and
contribution to the Group. In terms of employee dismissal, the Group
follows the local labour laws and regulations as stipulated by the
government.

The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group are in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of holidays, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.
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Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions to
organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care
to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense
of belonging and cohesiveness to the Group.

In the financial year 2018, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislations and/or regulations.

KPI B1.1: The Group's workforce can be divided into five age groups for
disclosure purpose: 18-20 years old, 21-30 years old, 31-40 years old, 41—
50 years old and 50 years old or above.

Employees’ distribution by gender, type of employment and age in the
financial year 2018 are shown in the following charts:

Gender Distribution:
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Health and Safety

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy
environment for all customers, employees, and business partners.
Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive insurance coverage for
work injury and employer liability and annual health check. We conduct
regular inspection of premises, provide training and education to our
employees on disaster prevention, fire drills, occupational safety, as well as
first aid training to enhance employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent
accidents.

—  Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a clean
environment in office and on sales floors, and providing sufficient
working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and department store areas.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, the Group requires its employee to share the
responsibility in the setting and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:

— identifying, reporting and rectifying hazards at work in relation to
health and safety and reporting such hazards immediately to
superiors or the security department.

— investigating any accidents or hazards to prevent them from
happening or re-occurrence.

—  co-operating with management in adopting work safety methods
and procedures.

KPI B2.1: There was no work related fatality incident reported in the
financial year 2018.

KPI B2.2: The number of loss of working days due to work injuries
accounted for 0.01% of normal work days in 2018.
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Staff Training and Development BEREI

The Group regards employees as valuable assets and their development AEBREESEEAEENEENELEE ' E
helps driving the growth of the Group. In pursuing our business objectives ~EMEREASEEIERNED ) - EEREHF R
and providing protection to the rights and interests of our employees, the RIEE B EAREMNRF - NEBOEGEBE
Group aims to put in place a suitable training platform that supports our & FF{E  EMERRIFIIFREERAEEHRE
employees’ personal development as well as the development of the AEESRHITEGAEEKLEEZE LFIHF
Group through performance evaluation, two-way communications and & ° AN& B 25 A T 5 B84 E B 3 & R Ig5I 8K
questionnaires on training needs. The employee development and training 2§ :
policies adopted by the Group include:

—  providing new joiners with comprehensive orientation programto  — AN MAKNESRHEZ2EAO ARSI 5
assist new joiners familiar with the Group. Fl - A BT ABUE BERARER -

—  providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related — TEEHKTEHN AEERHEHABHISON
training and development workshops. BE R ER -

—  actively sourcing suitable external training programs. In 2018, we ~ —  BEBERINDEINER - —T— NFHE
worked with professional training institutions to provide supervisor ¥EIHBSE RARTEBETRNE
level outward development workshops and middle to senior ERIRIE PEEEEABHIES
management level training programs. These workshops and BERAMIZIES - HEXERMERE R
programs covered aspects such as management and team building MBMEERT FIANETBEEER
skills which were provided by professional trainers. B BEAEETE -

—  post training evaluations were conducted to assess the effectiveness ~— 35518 1T ER#E 5T ARE IR A K ©

of these training programmes.
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the relevant local labour laws
and regulations, and ensure that the employment contracts with
employees are on a fair, equal, voluntary, mutually agreed and good faith
basis. The Group adopts employment policy and procedures which
prohibit forced labour and child labour. The same requirements also apply
to the Group’s concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: We strive to perform continuous review and improvement in the
recruitment practices to prevent child labour and forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who age below 16. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for the review of the age of the applicants during
recruitment to ensure that no minors under the age of 16 are
employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure employee to
work.

KPI B4.2: We were not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2018. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any noncompliant situations in
respect of child or forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group establishes our practices and build our supply chain
management based on the business model that is sales of direct
purchased merchandises and sales of branded merchandises through
concessionaire and leasing arrangements. Through seamless cooperation
with suppliers and business partners, and highly efficient information
technology networks, the Group is able to work smoothly along the supply
chain which optimises the resources allocation to deliver high-quality
products and services to our customers. The Group strives to share our
commitments and beliefs on environmental and social aspects with our
business partner. This also encourages our business partners to pay
attention to and control environmental and social risks that may be related
to supply chain management and embrace high standards of corporate
responsibilities which are similar to those of ours.
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The supply chain management policy and procedures adopted within the
Group include:

—  to cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  suppliers are contractually prohibited to hire child labour.

—  suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.2: Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers:

—  suppliers are required to meet the Group’s product requirements,
such as price, quantity and delivery time.

—  selection process of suppliers is based on a set of standards,
including quality control and compliance with relevant standards
applicable in China and/or globally.

—  renewal of supplier contracts is subject to satisfactory results upon
review of their performance during the contract period based on the
practice and performance.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our reputation is built on delivering high quality
products and services to our customers. Our operation team is committed
to providing safe and high quality products and services to our customers,
and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

Moreover, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our success.
We strictly follow the industry standards and government regulations
relevant to our products and services. We provide trainings to employees
to enhance their consciousness of product safety in order to prevent any
counterfeits and sub-standard merchandises being sold at our stores and
to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follow:

—  For non-food products, the Group conducts regular quality checks
on products provided by our suppliers and business partners to
ensure that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Special attention is placed on the compliance with
those regulations and requirements related to baby and children
products, toys and customer safety to ensure that our products sold
fully complies with the relevant regulations and requirements of the
PRC.
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—  For food products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also follow policies and procedures such

noon

as "Purchase inspection and recording policy”, “Food selling
procedure management”, “Procedures regarding removal of
substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and procedures
relating to reporting and handling of emergency food safety

incident” etc. to ensure all food items provided are safe.

KPI B6.2: In the financial year 2018, our customer services extended to
before, during and after the sales. All complaints are handled by
professional personnel of the Group’s customer service department.
Details of the complaints, progress status, handling time and settlement
are properly recorded. In the financial year 2018, customer complaints
received by the Group were consistent with industry norm.

KPI B6.3: Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success. We
actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our brands.

—  We value intellectual property and determine intellectual property is
an indispensable element of successful business.

—  We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

—  We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not infringe
their intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and require our employees to maintain high standard on
ethics, personal and professional conducts in order to maintain and
promote the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has in place a conflict of interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our business partners to
minimise and mitigate any situations that may lead to the occurrence of
conflict of interests or corruptions. At the same time, the Group considers
integrity as our core value and encourages our employees to report any
misconduct or fraudulent behaviour. The anti-corruption policy of the
Group is set out in the Employees’ Handbook and the letters of
undertakings signed by our suppliers.

KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2018, there were not any members of the
Group or any of the employees during the employment term was
prosecuted for corruption.
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Community Investment
The Group adheres to the concept of "Giving back to society

"

and
proactively participate in community and social services to promote
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest to support the community, especially to
those less privileged groups as well as the young generation in terms of
education, growth and development. Through connecting and interacting
with the community, the Group aims to:

—  support less privileged groups and bring them love and hopes;
—  encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

—  strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and
—  provide education to help them achieving better future.

KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

— education
The related actions in each area include:

—  For education support, major activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2018 were as follows,

] In 2018, our Suzhou store made a charity sponsorship to the
project of caring of the psychological health of home alone
children organised by Ying Chun Hua Love Federation (¥ &
TEE DB A 2) of the Suzhou Industrial Park to donate 10
computers of a value of RMB31,390 to a nationality primary
school of the less privileged region in Guizhou. Such charity
and public welfare project is aimed at leveraging the
psychological counselling platform of the Second Hospital of
Suzhou University (8 A i —Fz) by arranging professional
psychological counsellors to relieve and alleviate the negative
mentality of home alone children in order to address their bad
habits.

2| In 2018, our Suzhou store continued the charitable education
support activities of the Suzhou Industrial Park Charity
Foundation (8f /N T E & ZZE$ ), to provide assistance
to students from less privileged families of the Suzhou
Industrial Park with donation of RMB200,000.
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| In 2018, our Shanghai store supported the Shanghai
Charitable Education and Training Center through activities
and donations, subsidising the young children in need. A
donation of RMB60,000 was made to the charity.

M In 2018, our Shanghai store sponsored Ma You Primary School
in one of the poverty areas of Guizhou by donating
stationeries which valued RMB6,580.

—  For community care, activities that the Group participated in the
financial year 2018 were as follows,

| In 2018, Shanghai store continued to participate in the “Love
under Blue Sky — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event
hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated part
of a day’s sales receipts in the amount of RMB7,000 to
support women for gynecological examination and the elderly
with financial difficulties.

| In 2018, our Shanghai store donated a total of 80 boxes of
goods (uniforms) with a value of RMB287,000 to Mali Po,
Wenshan County, Yunnan Province (£ & X L& 2R ) and
charity bazaar supermarket in Jingan District (8 & [&),
Shanghai City through the Jingan Branch of the Shanghai
Charity Association (E/BMAZREF LD G).

| In November 2018, our Shanghai store participated in a
specific poverty alleviation project specifically for Yanshan
County (87 [ #%) from the Administration for Housing of
Jingan District. Through the Jingan Branch of the Shanghai
Charity Association, a donation of RMB100,000 was made to
Yanshan County of Yunnan Province.

| In 2018, our Suzhou store donated a total of 10 boxes of goods
(tableware) to Shengpu House for the Elderly (BHakEFt) of
Suzhou through Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation.

| In 2018, our Suzhou store donated a total of 48 boxes of goods
(uniforms) with a value of RMB250,000 to Jiuling House for the
Elderly (ABREEBR) of Suzhou Industrial Park through Suzhou
Industrial Park Charity Foundation.
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KPI B8.2: The Group continued to work actively with various charitable
organisations to interact with local communities in a variety of ways during
the year. In the financial year 2018, the Group donated RMB944,100 to less
privileged groups and teenagers. The charitable organisation we worked
with included Shanghai Charity Foundation, Shanghai Jing’an District Civil
Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable Education and Training Centre,
Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation and Suzhou Industrial Park Ying
Chun Hua Love Federation.

Outlook

The Group will continue to uphold our principle in a responsible manner
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers,
employees, shareholders and the society, to strive for coordination and
development between the enterprise and the society, the enterprise and
the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders, and make
contributions to the society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

&9

A.  Environmental
BE

A1. Emissions

2.9 8]

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI
PR A NIRRT

A2. Use of Resources

ERFER

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI
RRA NIRRT

EECE]

e Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

BRERMEEREHN MK RLOHS BEREZERMNEESH : @K
K Rb) BTHETAREAZENRBEZRAGINER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BriE iR LR EBUE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
BERBEHRERTE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

MELEERRNBERETE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

ELBRERRNEERTE -
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
R EHRENEELAGKR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

HWRREEERBEERZNNTTE REELENEHREAGKR -

Al1.2

A13

Al4

A1.5

Al.6

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER (BREER  KREMRME) MBR -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity.
RERESNERER IHEEREEERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

F R IR 8 ARG s 8 TSR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

i SKEE A KOR E AT A M RIRE - A RIBFA KR E I RFTERER -
Total packaging material used for finished products.

REmAAEEMHNEE -

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRARER

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI
PRA NIRRT

e Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

BEETAHRERAREREREATEOBE

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
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B. Social
HE

B1. Employment
B

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI
RREIIER

B2. Health and Safety
RERZE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI
RREIIER

BRI

General Disclosure

— R E

B4. Labour Standards
STEA

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI
RREIER

o

¢ |nformation on (

a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a S|gn|f|cant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EW%M&%E %%&“ﬂ Iﬁﬁ% RE - FERE - Zfl - REBRAKRE

RFB R ABFIN : () B3R Rb) BFHBETABEATEORMERRRIINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.
miER - BREER  FRANNBESIDHESEH -

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRRHZ2TERENREEEMEBEMRELN (@) BR : Rb) ETHETA
BEATZENRBMEZRAGINELR

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

EATEREMETH AR R -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
TEBRIERE -

Development and Training

e Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
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Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
BREAMIEETSAHSIN : (a)
BB EH -

R+ K(o) BTHBETABEATENRRERR

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

R E RIS E FIE AR R ET RIS T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
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B. Social
e
@ B5. Supply Chain Management
REEEE
General Disclosure e Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
R ER N R R GRREEK -
KPI ) B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
BSIE AR R suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.
HAABREAHERNEN  MERTERENNHEREKE - ULE
B PIRIT RERTTE -

B6. Product Responsibility

EmEFE

General Disclosure ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and

—RBEE regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BRFMRHERNRBHRRERZS - BE - RRELBFEUA R AR :
a) BUR i R(b) EFEHEITAGEAFENRB@EERABINER

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how

R A they are dealt with.

RERNERMRGOIRFHE AREE 7% -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
B A R R RN SR E R R V1B D -

N B7. Anti-corruption
~ é R&ES

General Disclosure ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
R E regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAR LEFERE - BIR - BGEROEREN : () R - Rb) BTFHETABEKR
FENEREERADINER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
R4 s iE against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
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MEER -
B8. Community Investment
HERE

General Disclosure e Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

— R R communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
ﬁﬁﬁbﬂilﬁ 2HERTHEEMELRETENBREERED S E BILE A=
B 3R

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,

R4 s iE labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIEREE (HE  RRFE L IER - BE- L85 -
B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas.
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Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2018, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement facilitates the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness of
its operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of five
directors, including one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. During the year and
up to the date of this report, there was no change in composition of
the Board. The directors’ biographical details and the relationships
among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in this annual
report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and the Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors meet the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.
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Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years and all
directors (including non-executive directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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(6)

(7)

Meetings 6) E=
The Board held five meetings during the year to review and EEERNFANYSERAARGEH  UWENHK
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE (AR aiE) REENPHRRRAZES
announcements and financial statements, the connected and NERMBEHRER BERSBHERS
continuing connected transaction, and to review quarterly operating REMNAEENEZTELEREA -
performance of the Group.
Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in RIEANRAMERBUNERE  EF
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance EREFARIINEFERARBELRR
with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association. The NEFEER BREFNFALFESS
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings held GEHZEEEIAT
during the year is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HEBITEBRRE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors B Exgem BREBFRE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 28BS & 5/5 11
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRIEIS/NE 5/5 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFH{TES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SR E MR /NA 5/5 11
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRS S 5/5 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai AR E 5/5 11
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESSRHETZESSRECERARE

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.
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(8)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional (8) EEMERKFEEXBRE
Development
Induction package covering the Group's businesses and the BENEEZESE (R SEGEERR
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed REBEBR R TR 7§$Ei@&§#w
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any. REFEENREER - RAFRFEH M
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's EERMHBMAANEBEERLR - AR
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules REMBRAEERENRNER -
and other applicable regulatory requirements.
During the year, the directors participated the following training: FRN - EBEFD2EATEI
Types of Training
Directors B o Eckic)
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Gyt A, C
Non-executive Director EHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRI/ NME A, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUFHTES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRS/ NME A C
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR & A C
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MIET A& A B, C
A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the A — BEAAQRRMEBARATE
Company's businesses and regular updates on the Listing BUARBEERREREEN
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements MRBI R EAMEREERENTE
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities HE AR
B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums B — ﬁfﬁﬁa%%ﬂ%%&f&m%ﬁﬁﬁ
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities e/ /Mmie /a3 wiEg
C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — MEEHEGEERFH BRK
governance matters, environment and social issues or HERENBEERE L EETR
director’s duties and responsibilities = R ET
E/\—J -
6&@%@5\3 _ i /1§5§\
A #
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB2.9 million and
approximately RMBO0.4 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of significant non-audit
services and the fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information
for the six months ended

30 June 2018 RMBO0.4 million

mﬂw

china Group Limited Annual Repo
-

BEEZREERS

ADFE R E TR SRR (TR
ANEFRTEFRHOPETANERLEFE
TEH X SN RTPEA (FEFR) « EAAF
S EENE  BE-F—\F+-A=+—
BLEFER - Fi8E FRRES D TEETR
FTHRTE 2 AR «

ESHMBHRRZEME
ERRRHSARTEERUAEERE )\
FHZA=T—RILFEZHEERE - EEDH
(RIZIRTERE RBA B RABREER - R
BRHEQEEERUMBRE  UAEATIHE
BAEBERNZHBRA  ZERASRE -

EE=WRRRAEERMERIERS TATE - 1
EEEREAARTIENAE LBBERAREZ
RISGRRIRGOBM - 98 R HRIZAR TS -
15 5 TR AR B A W0 R AUADE R B R R EE A
BHBZHRE -

ARBGEMEAEEBEE_T—\F+ A
=t HALEFEMBHRRZREEERER 2B
RAERAFR [ BUZBE RS - EFFZERN
ERERIMNEZBENBERE B - BE
“E-N\FTZAZT—HLFE  ARFINE
TR AAREREZBRFRBRBZC
[/ ENERANNARKE29BSETRAOARE
0ARETT - BEEFRBRBLMELERZFE
L

EHRHE_Z-NF
RA=Z+HIEREAZ

T HART 5 A R ARBOABE T

t 2078



Corporate Governance Report (continued) & ¥ &34 3R & (&)

Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man,
Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit
committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified
public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company’s financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

EE2BETHNERS
BEAREEN BREEE FHEAGRE
AEAGIEEF - BRSNS A 0BRTEY
HEFEEIEABE -

(1) BHRZEE"
ERZBEem=-RNEMAR  BIMEE
S REMPMARKRIREL - 2K
BYURBYFNTES BEREZES
MAREERETRE  KARESER
ERLZERRRRAMERABITERE

BAETANTRRATECEREZES®
BEREFIZEG2RIRBACEH
RA R Bk o

ERZBEZIEREWNT
BEHAR AN R A 2 AR TS B B

REARZBILE EEE KA X
HEM:

=

(i) BHARFZEMBHRERME &
FIRREEN 2 #E) REGHEST
AR EmAR R RADIAR
E

(i) EBERAKBEZMBHEEHNE - AR
BERAMEENEITERE &

(v BIREZCEFRHIZ R
SRR -

FR BRZBEEERTMAEH &%

BeRBHEERZCHHINWT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members EREEGHE HE/BITEERE
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MICEF A (EFE) 2/2
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ A 2/2
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRR 2/2
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(2)

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
and (iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (i) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(2)

EZZBERE L) RIS RN ERH A
SEPHRFERBHRRIBERBER
EESAHEERILE ¢ ()EIMNEZEED
EHAREMERAZ S RAIREBER:
(FRRREE R ARPEESEZ BN
M RvERHARE 2 BRERBE -

FMESS
FMEE SR =R B IIFRITEEMAR
RERAFMEREG ZER)  REMHN
ERFIR AL AR —BRITEERIER
FEAEEK - HINE B S RIEHFTMEIRA
BITHRBE -

BEETRNTARETEZHMEES
BREGSEFIZBEECEIMBECDEH
R DB Ak o

FHEZEE T ERERAESSRHEEZ
BREBOEENEREERE 2 HTE
(NE2EMHEN ARERBEARER
EEeTHEFECRIRR  HEMARH
MBI L R - RINNBERFRESHK
BREEERI TERZERNRERHEL

Bt -

FR HFHEZBEEERT - REH-BX
BeRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FMZEEERE HiE BITEBRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt 11
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MBI (FFE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X e 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval the remuneration packages
of the directors and senior management for the year.
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Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR - REZBEERT - REH-BX
BegRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REZEEEHE HiE BITEBRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) REIB A () 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR S S A 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
(iii) made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-
election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group’s system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2018, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2018 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysis’s briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements
but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company also provides an opportunity for communication between the
Board and the shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.
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Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group's future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement and surplus,
general financial conditions and other factors as the Board may consider
relevant.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the "Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents
During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 64, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the
Chairman, chief executive officer, and is also director of certain
subsidiaries and associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the
chairman and a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai
Committee and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao
Tong University, the PRC.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 57, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a degree of
Master of Business Administration from University of Leicester, the United
Kingdom and a degree of Bachelor of Laws from University of
Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 53, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. She holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws
of the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws of The
University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Cheung has more than 25 years of
experience in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued the legal
career since 2006 and is currently a solicitor of S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 64, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in the year of 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 63, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam serves as an
executive director, the group financial controller and the company
secretary of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance
and accounting industries. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and holds a degree of Master of Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom.
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The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual

report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
supermarket business in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 63.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 12 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial

I

Summary” on page 159. No important event affecting the Group has

occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 13 to 32 of this annual report.

Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group’s turnover were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 54% of the Group's purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 18% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the number of
issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB402,000 (2017: RMB17,000).

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Lam Kwong Wai will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EENESTHRAERKRSG - HEKRS
REER KRS
RNZZE—NF+_A=1+—HB ZE2=LES]
BABRARR S EAR 2 BEEE (E(EH R
HE AN FH RS G ] EXVEBRTES)
2R - MR G REEE PR EIREEH R
EIEFIEI2MEMERERBEF 2 B MRk
RIEBBHEXFERAE ([BRAT])#FH L
AR A ([ ETRRAD) M8+ A 2 ( ETETA
EFETEFRZMEESTRINZESTA] A
MEARRNBI R ERRAREHINNAT

Long position in shares of the Company AABRRGBZER
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
ek HEBITRA
EEgE ERME £ 4= ZEBEDL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
REE A BEHEEEA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
SPEHEE s ()
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

%A BamEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through his controlled corporations and as to 20% by certain family
members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder brother of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which United Goal

is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same

parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the

SFO

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

REEFFRBERIATHEEZRR
i

R-B—NE+ZA=+—8 FIAL(FE
BEARAEFAEBTRAR RART 2K
R AR R 19 7 5 1R 08 28 2 T A R ) 56 33615
RERSN ARG 2 EEMARAG AL 2
EHAR BT :

Long position in shares of the Company KABRRGBZER
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
BERAG HERITRG
28 fERME =] ZBEDH
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 36.87%
EmEa A (BF3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
("Asia Prime”) (Notes 1 and 3)
EEHEE S (M1 R3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 540,000,000 36.87%
("Sand Cove") (Notes 2 and 3)
EEHEE R (M2 R3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 304,988,832 20.83%
EmEa A (BE3)
Notes: B EE -
1. Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds 1. Asia Prime B2ISB A ERBEZESZ AT EFE

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of the SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be

interested as set out in Note 1 above.

3. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a director of United Goal and Sand Cove, and the

sole director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Connected Transaction

On 31 July 2018, a sale and purchase agreement ("S&P Agreement”) was
entered into between Vision Pilot Group Limited (“Purchaser”, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle
International”)) and Majestic Eagle Limited (“Vendor”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), which the Purchaser agreed to purchase and
the Vendor agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Global Top
Limited at a consideration of HK$52 million.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a controlling shareholder of the Company
and Lifestyle International. In view of his interest in Lifestyle International,
the Purchaser is an associate of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and therefore
connected person of the Company. As a result, the S&P Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction were set out in the joint announcement of the
Company dated 31 July 2018.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company ("Continuing Connected Transactions”)

under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018.

KEREXRS

BHE_Z-N\F+ZA=1+—HILFERN  RE
ETRE - ARBZ TR ZERTER RIFE

MEXS ((HEEERS]) -

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEH=R
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps Transaction
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction (Note 4)  amount (RMB'000) amount (RMB'000)
ARERSH REHHER BEBH 8 RHHEE (M) FELREBE(ARYTR) RELE(AR¥TR)
(i) Shanghai Ongoing LENBETES 26 November 2004 1 October 2004 to Lease of entire (a) Rental Fee: 172,000 (a) Rental Fee: 160,574
Department Store Limited AR 27 —TIEE 30 September 2024 building of & : 172,000 e 160,574
("Shanghai Ongoing"), (Shanghai Joinbuy +-F=+7H ZTIME Shanghai Joinbuy (b) Management Fee: 48,000  (b) Management Fee: 35.735
a company owned City Plaza Co. Ltd.*) +A-B% City Plaza ERE 48000 ERE 35735
of 65% by the Group ("Shanghai Joinbuy"), EomE (EBABRTES)
LBAXEEBRRE  acompany owned of NA=+H HELELEAR
(TLBAX]) A%E  50%by the Group il YN
HEH6UREN LT (Note 1)
HENEHTRESERAR
(TLBNR])  F5E
BE0%RENAR
(M)
(i) Global Top Limited, Congenial Company 10 June 2016 1 June 2016 to Lease of portion of 13223 5771
a wholly-owned Limited (Note 2) —I-RE 31 December 2018 22nd Floor, (Note 3)
subsidiary of Congenial Company ~AtH E-RE East Point Centre, (Mi3E3)
the Group (Note 3) Limited (Fi{3£2) ~A—BE 555 Hennessy Road,
tEEERAT - “B0F Causeway Bay,
FEEN2E +ZA=1+-8 Hong Kong
MBRA (F3E3) BERBREL
SR 185553
RARL
BANEEE
*  For identification purpose only xR
2.  Entrusted Loan Agreement 2. ZEXERWHE
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps Transaction
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction (Note 6)  amount (RMB'000) amount (RMB'000)
AREREH REUFER ELEE 8 REME (M) FELREBE(ARETR) REZLEARETR)
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy 12 June 2018 12 June 2018 to Provision of 100,000 30,000
DY/ (Note 1) “Z-N\E 11 June 2021 entrusted loan(s) (Note 5) (Note 5)
-y ~ATZH ZENE REZFEER GES) (M3E5)
(W) ~NATZHEZ
—E--F
~AT—H
Notes: B 5
1. Shanghai Ongoing is owed as to 5% by /&1 A (5£E) AR 2] (“Joinbuy 1. EEAKA EEAE (EE)BRAR (LA

Group”) and 30% by £/& 71L& & B BR 2 & ("Joinbuy Investment”).

Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy Investment (whose controlling shareholder is

Joinbuy Group), being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are

connected persons of the Company. As Shanghai Joinbuy is owned as to

12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Investment. Shanghai Joinbuy

is an associate of Joinbuy Investment and a connected person of the

Company under the Listing Rules.
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2. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, either directly or indirectly owns 74.98%
interest in Lifestyle International. Hence, Lifestyle International and its
subsidiaries (including Congenial Company Limited) are associates of Mr.
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and, therefore, connected persons of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

3 As the Group had disposed of its entire interest in Global Top Limited on 31
July 2018, Global Top Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and
therefore the amount represented the transactions incurred during the
period from 1 January 2018 up to 31 July 2018.

4. Further details of the transactions were set out in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the listing document issued by the Company
dated 30 June 2016.

5. Such amount covered the period from 12 June 2018 to 31 December 2018.

6. Further details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 June 2018.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Change in Information of Directors
Below is the change in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Cheung Mei Han
—  appointed as a Vice President of Hong Kong Sailing Federation since
December 2018

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company repurchased a
total of 138,138,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for
enhancing the net asset value and earnings per share of the Company. All
the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. Details of the
repurchases of shares are as follows:

Price paid per share

EENGRER RS
ARBEBVENTARFESTRHRERE LT
FRBIZES 10K B THE 2w o

EZEHEE
AT 2B EmRAIZE13.51B(1
WEZESEHNET -

MG ZRE BT

SREM/NE
— B N\FTAREBZEAREHENM
Eygerer

R 2 REEX
BRAARZABERMA  SHUEFFERE
FEEAR) AT TS T T B B o B B
Mz —RAREERSA T EERESHE
g AAFAEAFEEEEREMMEBEEE
MERRERBEETRRIERRE -

BE - HEIBEAQATRSH
2T N\E+-_A=+—HIFER ZK
Tﬁﬁéﬁi\ﬁﬁ,ﬁ%@,ﬁ%%138,138,000Hx$ ARRM L

RREARAESRNEEFERETN - %%%E%@%
I ERC W - BEBLRG <FHBEIIWT :

Aggregate

Number of shares ERBEE consideration

Month repurchased Highest Lowest (excluding expenses)

B BEROEE BS BRI BRE(CTEERX)

(HKS) (HKS) (HK$'000)

(BT (BT (FBT)

April 2018 28,494,500 3.09 2.20 77,408
—N\FHEA

May 2018 60,287,500 3.99 3.38 224,387
E—N\FhHA

June 2018 29,708,500 3.89 3.37 111,483
—N\FERA

August 2018 19,647,500 3.73 3.13 70,368
—NENA

138,138,000 483,646

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries B EXFI#EZEEN  HE T — N\F + )E]

had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 1,216 employees,
with 1,210 stationed in mainland China and 6 in Hong Kong. Staff costs
(excluding directors’” emoluments), amounted to RMB168.7 million (2017:
RMB169.3 million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

4 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ABERE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LIFESTYLE CHINA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 158, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
B ET R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANESFNAHBERESNEEETER

Share of profits and other comprehensive income of an associate and interest in an associate in respect of

AFALIEA BEEEREF 2L & ("Beiren Group”)

BAOZHLEAAGEEEREEL T ([HAEE]) BB ZBEHERABSFREMEE KRB E R a8

We identified the Group’s share of profits and other
comprehensive income of an associate and interest in an
associate, in respect of Beiren Group, as a key audit matter
due to its significance to the Group's profits for the year and
the Group's net assets.

BB ESEEEIASEFREZ B E QR
RHEMEE S RN E A RN ER  ERBEEEE
EEEY BEEEFARENN BEEEREEFEEASES
Mo

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's share of profits and other
comprehensive income of Beiren Group amounted to
approximately RMB340.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 and interest in an associate in respect of
Beiren Group amounted to RMB3,333.8 million as at 31
December 2018.

WniE A M HmRM T 16PTHE - EEREHE_Z—\F
TZRA=+—RIEFERMAEZIEAEER R R EAM2E S
HR/ARE3M0. 088 MR- N\F+_HA=+—8BR
IAEBEMRBERRER R/ ARKE33338BETT °
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Our procedures in relation to the Group's share of profits and
other comprehensive income of an associate and interest in an
associate in respect of Beiren Group included:

BB ERERI ASEBE RS R RN &M 2 E RS
AR REE S R T R R E 7B

. Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the financial information of Beiren
Group, whether due to fraud or error and performing
audit procedures responsive to those risks;

. BRI RILARBTBEN TS FERLGFERT
BHWERERER - A RAITEHZ LR R M @ ES
ERERF

o Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to
the Beiren Group in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances;

. TEREAE A EARRM A RS KM REAES BN
ERERF

o Obtaining sufficient audit evidence regarding the financial
information of Beiren Group as disclosed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements;

. PRERA M BRRMI 6B AR BT B ERERR
MENEZEE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the management of Beiren Group and assessing
whether the accounting policies adopted were in line with
the accounting policy of the Group;

. A ASEEERERANS A RERNE RN G
AAEEN  URFEMRANGAREESERE 85
B )& R BOR AL

. Checking the computation of the share of profit and other
comprehensive income of Beiren Group prepared by the
management; and

. REEEEREEEILASEEN &AMt 2K ST

B%E: &
o Evaluating whether the Group's interests in associates in

respect of Beiren Group were properly accounted for and
appropriately disclosed in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS") 28 (2011)
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” and
HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities”.

. M BEEBRIEASEEMBREATNEZESSEE
RAIREEB ST EN (BB 4R 2858 (20114F)
[HEENFIREELERE I REBMBRELELNF12
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Key audit matter
B ETEH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANESFNAHERESNEEETRR

Capitalisation and additions to construction in progress and properties under development

BEXLRFEETEBETIRRBERETYF

We identified the capitalisation and additions to construction
in progress ("CIP") and properties under development
("PUD") as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
Group's properties development projects.

MmN EEEMEFRBENEZN  ZMBIIEERER
itEERIR(ERIRD RERDYE(EHRTYWED
ERBERESEE -

As disclosed in notes 14 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the capitalisation and additions to CIP and PUD
amounted to approximately RMB524.1 million and RMB120.0
million, respectively. The relevant accounting policies are set
out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements under
the headings of “Property, plant and equipment”, “Properties
under development” and "Borrowing costs”.

BINER A SRR 1ARIBHTHE - B RINIGELE
TIRRRERTUES NN/ ARES2A1EETRARE120.0
EF%T_E HEGTBREN GV BERRNEIWE  BE

wiE]  [BERAWEIRMEERAE] -

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

B
N

g®BRAT —z_

Our procedures in relation to capitalisation and additions to CIP
and PUD included:
B ERME RFIEE AR TR NERDYERRNIZF B

o Obtaining an understanding of the construction progress
of the Group's CIP and PUD projects by interviewing the
Group's project team and external quantity surveyors;

. midmE ESEEEEEBFMNBIRASM - TR &
SEERTRERERTYERAMNETEE

o Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the internal
control over the Group's budgeting and payments for the
CIP and PUD projects;
. TﬁﬁDEWE EREEHERIBRERTYHEEENE
CRIFZREE0IAE-(F2

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group's
construction costs’ capitalisation policy by comparing it
against the accounting policies of “Property, plant and
equipment” and "“Properties under development” as
disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, and the reasonableness of the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation against the accounting
policy of “Borrowing costs” as disclosed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements; and

. mALE ESEERERENERMCEE R
RIFAIWBENWE  BEMERB I R[BRTYE NS
ATBERAEEEE N - URFTAEERMEHEE R A RER
S BHMEMAIMEN EERE N SETEER - FHEE
aEM K&

GAHBHE

o Checking, on a sample basis, the amounts of additions
and proper accruals with reference to the contracts,
contractors’ claim forms or invoices and quantity
surveyors' certificates in respect of the CIP and PUD.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau King Pak.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
4 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeESERAMEERRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BLZE — T — NF+_A=+—HLLFE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
{hr=s AR®T ARBFTT
Turnover e 5 1,183,752 1,222,785
Cost of sales $HEE A AN 5 (375,190) (357,409)
Gross profit EF 808,562 865,376
Other income, gains and losses HAa WA - e REE 6 100,866 75,480
Selling and distribution costs $HE K5 SR (487,752) (576,606)
Administrative expenses THHAX (157,076) (99,564)
Interest and investment income FERKE WA 7 69,234 52,806
Share of profit of a joint venture E(E—fR&E R 17 34,390 37,451
Share of profits of associates FE (R B & R B A 16 339,760 289,272
Finance costs A& B AR 8 — (3,344)
Profit before taxation B 5 A ) 707,984 640,871
Taxation iR (140,102) (156,345)
Profit for the year RE E i A 10 567,882 484,526
Other comprehensive income (expense) RNEF HA 2 E WA
for the year (F%)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BEIRPIBEEFT D 1A
profit or loss: ZEmcEE ¢
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINET I
foreign operations EEZIERZR 945 (4,129)
Total comprehensive income for the year REZEEB AL 568,827 480,397
Profit for the year attributable to: REZREMERN
Owners of the Company KAEER A 338,074 269,590
Non-controlling interests JEVE N = 229,808 214,936
567,882 484,526
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FER2E AL :
Owners of the Company PA/NCIE RN 339,019 265,461
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR = 229,808 214,936
568,827 480,397
Earnings per share BRAT
— Basic —ER 13 RMBO0.222 RMBO0.168
AR®0.222t | AR¥0.1687C

x@®
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at 31 December 2018 A —ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
{hg=2 ARET T AREEF T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RFE 14 4,211,465 3,796,539
Prepaid lease payments TEHERIA 15 2,224,965 2,290,740
Interests in associates REE N E R 16 3,337,937 3,069,343
Interest in a joint venture R—EEeELEED 17 386,297 391,247
Properties under development BRERPYE 18 1,044,417 924,368
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 19 — 378
Other receivables H th E Y FkE 20 135,323 127,684
11,340,404 10,600,299
Current assets MEEE
Inventories ra 21 49,574 42,555
Prepaid lease payments TERHERIE 15 65,775 65,775
Trade and other receivables RUNERF &EW&‘HQM 20 181,221 172,836
Dividend receivable from an associate FEUL — A R 7H %8 — 2,465
Amount due from a joint venture B —REaEERIE 22 30,584 30,000
Financial assets at fair value through BAHEGABR S/
profit or loss BE 23 540,860 856,615
Bank balances and cash RTEFEERE 24 1,536,381 1,280,755
2,404,395 2,451,001
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Trade and other payables JEAS BR R e LAt A R 25 931,992 1,031,890
Amount due to a joint venture EBN—HEEED %MIE\ 22 13,602 44,836
Tax payable J& S5 1A 56,201 56,905
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE ——FRNIH 26 10,000 5,000
Contract liabilities AWEaE 27 7,378 —
1,019,173 1,138,631
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,385,222 1,312,370
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAR 12,725,626 11,912,669
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %4 B # R i % (&)
at 31 December 2018 R —ZE— \EFE+_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB’000
o= AR®T T ARET T
Non-current liabilities EIE =L
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITIEE — —F15 25 26 2,099,000 1,370,202
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIBEAE 19 32,382 31,424
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder FERTHTE A R — 2 IEER
of subsidiaries & B 2 RIE 28 44,296 89,795
2,175,678 1,491,421
10,549,948 10,421,248
Capital and reserve BARREE
Share capital A& A 29 6,291 6,884
Reserves (G 9,055,978 9,059,969
Equity attributable to owners of RRABIHER ANEGEER
the Company 9,062,269 9,066,853
Non-controlling interests JEVE R AE 1,487,679 1,354,395
10,549,948 10,421,248

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 158 were approved ~ F63E158Eir e MMz EEFTEN T —N
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2019 and are = AV A#LE RRETE - WHTIEFRE

signed on its behalf by: wmE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas %)% 5% 4 Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy R 35 /)N 8
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR #i17E = NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EH{TE =

OB —=_
6&@%@7‘% . b /1 §5%
A #




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 018 i ZE — T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAREEABEDD
Statutory Capital Non-
Share Share surplus  redemption Capital  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
EERK BREE FER
BRE  ROEE AEE fE  AXRE  RERE  REEF @t 33 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
(Note 30) (note a)
(Hi3£30) (Mizta)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—-F—H 6,884 6,940,091 77,15 — 35,568 (111,708) 1,853,401 8,801,392 1,253909 10,055,301
Profit for the year AEEHET — — — — — — 269,590 269,590 214,936 484,526
Other comprehensive expense AFFEABEZASM

for the year — — — — — (,129) — (4,129) — (4,129)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEERE () hes

income for the year — o — — — (4,129 269,590 265,461 214,936 480,397
Dividend paid to non-controlling B FERR IR RS

shareholders — — — — — — — — (114,450 (114,450
Transfer of reserves HAEE — — 23,758 — — — (23,758) — — —
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF+=ZA=+-H 6,884 6,940,091 100914 — 35,568 (115837) 2,099,233 9,066,853 1,354,395 10,421,248
Adjustments on adoptions of HKFRS 9 R4 /8 it 15 B 55 % B 95,

(note 2) 2B (H52) — — — — — — 11431 11,431 7,621 19,052
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\F-A—B(F5)) 6,884 6,940,091 100914 — 35,568 (115837) 2110664 9078284 1362016 10,440,300
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - - - - 338,074 338,074 229,808 567,882
Other comprehensive income AEEAMZARE

for the year - - - - - 945 - 945 - 945
Total comprehensive income AFERERREE

for the year — — — — — 945 338,074 339,019 229,808 568,827
Dividend paid to non-controlling BEFRRRE RS

shareholders - - - - - - - - (104,145)  (104,145)
Transfer of reserves HBARE - - 13,705 - - - (13,705) - - -
Repurchase of shares (note b) B (Eb) (593) (396,959 - 593 - - (593)  (397,552) —  (397,552)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HERBAR (HF31) - - - - 43,151 (633) - 42,518 - 42,518
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—H 6,291 6,543,132 114,619 593 78,719 (115,525) 2,434,440 9,062,269 1,487,679 10,549,948
Notes: ffsE -

a. The capital reserve as at 1 January 2017 represented deemed contribution from a. R-ZB—tF-A-HZEXRHBERATRERE

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ("Lifestyle International”), a former holding

company of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) in prior years, that

certain loan interest payables were waived by Lifestyle International and not

recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the

Group") prior to the listing of the Company in 2016.

As set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year, the

Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Vision Pilot Group

Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifestyle International, to sell 100% equity

interest in a Group's subsidiary, Global Top Limited ("Global Top”) at the
consideration of HK$52,000,000 (approximately RMB43,841,000) in cash. Such

disposal of subsidiary is accounted for as transaction with equity holder and the

gain on disposal of RMB43,151,000 is recognised in capital reserve as a

contribution from equity owner.

b. During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the general mandate given

to the directors of the Company, the Company repurchased 138,138,000 shares at
prices ranging from HK$2.20 to HK$3.99 through The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at a total consideration (including transaction
costs) of HK$484,659,000 (equivalent to RMB397,552,000) and all repurchased
shares were cancelled as at 31 December 2018. This cancellation resulted in the
decrease in issued share capital of HK$691,000 (equivalent to RMB593,000).

mgww
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BLZE — T — NF+_A=+—HLLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation B 75 B A 707,984 640,871
Adjustments for: EIEE AT AE
Interest income on bank deposits RITTE K2 FBUA (21,146) (17,588)
Interest income from a joint venture —HAEELEZFBMWA (1,070) (1,065)
Investment income from financial assets BAVEFABEZSREERN
at fair value through profit or loss "EWA (39,283) (22,676)
Other interest income H 4R B A (5,749) (4,256)
Dividend income from financial assets BAVEFABEZSREERN
at fair value through profit or loss EE=R PN (250) (1,645)
Net change in fair value of financial assets at fair BRATFEFABRZeREE
value through profit or loss N EEE)FE (1,736) (5,576)
Finance costs B AR — 3,344
Unrealised exchange (gain) loss FEIBIE K (k) Bk (461) 36,721
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREETE 111,080 114,024
Release of prepaid lease payments T ERIEE 17,193 17,193
(Gain) loss on disposal/write off of property, plant HEMRYE  BEREEHZ
and equipment (Meas) B8 (22) 484
Share of profit of a joint venture Eh—EEeELE R (34,390) (37,451)
Share of profits of associates i RN b (339,760) (289,272)
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in W& — & QAR
an associate I == — (11,297)
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables EUWER =B EEEE 1,681 —
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables H fth FE WK IE ERR 2 R B B 18 — 11,130
Operating cash flows before movements in working &E&E & ZFFILERERE
capital 394,071 432,941
Increase in inventories 7 &GN (7,519) (6,990)
Increase in properties under development ZRAP YL (121,397) (114,529)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFEE U5 B S5 B L i JE S 5 T 38 (10,717) (36,651)
Decrease in amount due to a joint venture BN —MEE&ERERIBRLD (31,234) (4,674)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables A A B SRR e L A JRE A< 3R IE O A)
o0 (5,749) 11,467
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEM 3,640 —
Cash generated from operations KREXBRER® 221,095 281,564
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBRER (530) (2,117)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHFRETEMSRH (137,958) (140,589)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBHEBRSFHE 82,607 138,858
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) & B &R 8% (4)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # & —

T-N\E+-AS+—AILEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBETF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received on bank deposits BUERITERZFE 17,484 19,080
Dividend received from an associate H—EBEQR 2B WIS 92,683 208,920
Dividend received from a joint venture H—EEeELEZEREE 39,340 36,437
Interest received from a joint venture H—HeaErEZEHAE 486 1,064
Other interest received B E AT B 475 2,835
Dividend received from financial assets WIEAFEFABR R EE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 B E 250 1,645
Investment income received from financial assets at {ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@zﬁﬁﬂﬂwﬁ SR MEE
fair value through profit or loss ZBUIEE A 40,698 19,040
Advance to employees of an associate m—EBE QR E THRR — (127,684)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BFEL&E (481,507) (316,147)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEFABRZER
at fair value through profit or loss BEFTSRIE 7,417,561 5,531,900
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERATEFAERZ SR
profit or loss BE (7,101,920) (6,310,311)
Repayment from a joint venture —HEEREZERK 30,000 —
Advance to a joint venture m—EaEPEMNEK (30,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BERRESHIE
plant and equipment 183 74
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING REFTERE (A BESFE
ACTIVITIES 25,733 (933,147)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
New bank borrowings raised HERITESR 738,798 431,712
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEERTEE (5,000) (141,6406)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary & —FWE AR S RIE 34,275 —
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders A IR 45 AR AR B R (45,499) —
Advance from non-controlling shareholders R B FFIE AR AR SR Y 2R — 105
Interest paid BEXfFE (77,001) (53,448)
Repurchase of shares o] BE A% 19 (397,552) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BUR A 45 FER AR R SR AR B (104,145) (114,450)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁiﬁﬁ 143,876 122,273
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH B & KRB ZSEYIE M i)
EQUIVALENTS FE 252,216 (672,016)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING & HHRE&RBELZEY
OF THE YEAR 1,280,755 1,990,170
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference ERZR 7 FE 3,410 (37,399)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND OF THE & RERRLEEY -
YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK BALANCES AND BERITEFERES
CASH 1,536,381 1,280,755
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RME

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BLZE — T — NF+_A=+—HLLFE

1.

General and Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands on
4 January 2016 and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 July 2016
(“Listing").

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the Company’s ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, who is also an
executive director of the Company.

The addresses of the office and the principal place of business of
the Company are set out in section headed “Corporate
Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as an
investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS ¢

Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the
date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained profits (or
other components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with
the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to
apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical expedient
for all contract modifications that occurred before the date of initial
application, the aggregate effect of all of the modifications was
reflected at the date of initial application. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

o Sales of goods — direct sales: from the Group's own sourced
and direct purchase merchandises to customers

o Income from concessionaire sales: from sales of goods by the
relevant concessionaires based on certain percentage of sales
in accordance with the terms of contracts. When the
concessionaires fail to meet the minimum guarantee income
in accordance with the terms of contracts, the minimum
guarantee amount is recognised as income

o Service income: from concessionaires for displaying their
products and billboards in department stores

o Rental income: from tenants for leasing the Group's
department store space (not within the scope of HKFRS 15)

L-‘iesw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. EANIRKETEBUBRE
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") ZA((EEBKHREEL]) (&)
(continued)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” ERMBRELERNEISHIRBEEFS
(continued) HHUWA (&)
Information about the Group's performance obligations and the FAAEEBOEANER  UREER
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are BEAVBHRELEBNBEISRERN K
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively. F DRI S RIME -
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 EXEREBHBHREEREISHELR
HEHE
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in RZZB-NF—-R—BNEFEaHBRRAER
the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2018. PHEANSHECFLATHE - A2 EH)
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been FEMNERWEBFEN o
included.
The Group has applied the modified retrospective method of REBEDHKALBITNEBP T EEEAY
transition to HKFRS 15. BREEAE155H -
Carrying
amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts under
31 December HKFRS 15 at
2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
2n BREEBYHK
—E—+F HMEERNZEI55
+=ZA=+—H R=Z—-NF
2| —A—B®
IRESHE ENSE REE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
k=3 ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Trade and other payables F& {3 BR 3¢ f2 H M FE <
(included deferred FIEBE(EFBFEERELE
income) W) a 1,031,890 (3,738) 1,028,152
Contract liabilities BHEE a — 3,738 3,738
Note: B 3E
(a) At the date of initial application, included in trade and other payables were (a) RBEAR - EAERREMENRIES

an amount of RMB2,879,000 and RMB859,000 related to unredeemed
balance of the Group's loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
and gift certificates purchased by customers, respectively. These balances
were reclassified to contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15 as it
represented the Group's performance obligation to transfer goods to

customers in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 HZE — T — \F+ A=+ —BILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs)
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and its consolidated statement of cash flows for the

2. ERHIREEIEEUBRE
ZA ([EHRMBREZER ] (R)

ERUBRELERUNEISHIRBEETFE

AR A ()
BAERE B BHREERFISHELY
TEHE(H)

His e BERAR ZE

TRBR T EAEEMBREEFI155
HAEER - Z—-N\F+-_A=+—HBH
HEPBRAREANFEGAEEZRER

current year for each of the line items affected. Line items that were XEENEE - AREYTENIER K
not affected by the changes have not been included. BIEER o
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REER
EBYBEHE
ERIE155%
TR A E AR z&8
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
k3 ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
Trade and other payables  J& 15 Bk 3 fo H A fE 1<
(included deferred FIE (B BFEE
income) A b 931,992 7,378 939,370
Contract liabilities sHaE b 7,378 (7,378) —
Note: ffeE -

(b) Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amount of RMB7,378,000 in relation to
balance of unredeemed loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
and gift certificates purchased by customers had been classified as contract
liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

(b) EREBMBREEREIHE  R_F
—NF+ZRA=+—0 " RABLREZR
B THEERD RBERIBNESERR
ARY7,378,0007C » ZEHEBREDEREL
Bffo

Hisa R nEXNTE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REER
BEMBRE
#BIZE1555
TR BT AR |
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBEF T ARBTFT AR®EF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES &R %%
Decrease in trade and JE AT BR 3 Se E M FE AT
other payables FRIEE A c (5,749) 3,640 (2,109)
Increase in contract ERBEEEM
liabilities c 3,640 (3,640) —
china Group Limited Annua) pe,, 2058
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows (continued))

(o) Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amount of RMB3,640,000 in relation to
movement of unredeemed loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
and gift certificates purchased by customers had been classified as

increase in contract liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2018.

There is no impact of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The Group had early applied HKFRS ¢ issued in November 2009 and
revised in October 2010 regarding classification and measurement
of financial assets and disclosure requirements in previous years. In
the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses ("ECL") for financial assets and 3)
general hedge accounting.

Except for the 2010 versions of HKFRS 9 that were early adopted by
the Group in previous years, the Group has applied the remaining
sections of HKFRS 9 and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs in the current year, whereas the introduction of new
requirements for ECL for financial assets is relevant to the Group.
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the requirements for ECL
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018
are recognised in the opening retained profits, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 HZE — T — \F+ A=+ —BILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. ERFIREEITTEMBRE
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") ZR((HBHEREER] (&)
(continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) ERMBREEAEIFRI&mITA]
(&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position YBEEHBRREREE
Carrying
amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts under
31 December Reclassification HKFRS 9 at
2017 reported Adjustments 1 January 2018
2Rn BRIEBEBIT
—E—+tHF HEZAFEIHR
+=A=+—H R=ZF—N\F
2|M —B—HBH®
IREEMH EFDERE FREE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
P 5 ARBTFIT AREF T ARBTIT
Interest in associates RN d 3,069,343 19,052 3,088,395
Reserves ki d 9,059,969 11,431 9,071,400
Non-controlling interests IR R hE == d 1,354,395 7,621 1,362,016
(d) Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the expected credit loss on trade and other (d) RERTEMBREEREIRRE - RIFA

receivables held by associates of the Group decreased by RMB19,052,000
based on the result of internal credit assessment performed by the Group's
management. The net effect arising from the initial application of HKFRS 9
resulted in an increase in the carrying amount of interest in associates
(which are held by a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group) and non-
controlling interests of RMB19,052,000 and RMB7,621,000, respectively,
with corresponding adjustment to retained profits by RMB11,431,000 as at
1 January 2018.

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies above,
the opening consolidated statement of financial position had to be
restated. The following table show the adjustments recognised for

SEEREETHADEETEER - st

ER

REFFA Z FEARR R L MR IR 2 TR

HEEEBRIEBZEBAARE
19,052,0007T © #)2F F& FA 25 7 B 15 S 5 42 Al

FOMELRFTED

-l

GECES OIS NI

i (HARE—FFEEEREMNBERARRHAE)
RFEERESOREESRNARY
19,052,0007C 2 A R #57,621,0007T * 3074 —
T \F— A BREEFIEEHZEARYE

11,431,0007T °

JEF AT B SR BB A A B R A
I

B Ak B EE BN RE - W
AR KA -
QEEREDBE - FEE

TRENEBERY

FENBEBY

each of the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by BmEFEEAN-
the changes haver not been included.
31 December
2017 1 January 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—E—+F —E-N\fF
+=A=+—-H ERMERE ERMERE —A—H
(BE#&) EBIE155 ERE9H (E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Interests in associates REEE DR R 3,069,343 — 19,052 3,088,395
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTEBRIR R E b FRIB 1,031,890 (3,738) — 1,028,152
Contract liabilities AaKEaE — 3,738 — 3,738
Capital and Reserves BAXRFEE
Reserves @ 9,059,969 — 11,431 9,071,400
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR 1,354,395 — 7,621 1,362,016
ina Group Limited Annyg,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Definition of Materials®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of all other new and

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing cash flows in accordance with the nature, as
appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB861,700,000 as disclosed in note 32. An
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid (included in other receivables) of RMB1,061,000 and
refundable rental deposits received of RMB72,318,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be considered as additional lease payments and included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement Contains
a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group has elected the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG

DS

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. EAHIREEITEENBRE

ZA(TEEMBREER ] (&)

FRMBRELF1655HEI(H)

BETIERAREBEANRESN  FEY
BREERNE1FABREFT B ER
FVTHREALEANGFRE  LRERE
HEASEES BERKEHELARETRE -

SN - BRI R AR E 1 N EFR
HBORE -

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 " 032
FTif TR - ANEE AT A U A &%
& AR #861,700,0007T ° FEBERZER
BEBHAHENTE - ERBEEVHRSE
HBIF16%N AEEERTBRERR
FREEEREEAE BRIFELFEEE
HEAEE -

o AREEMRADNARERER
© (G AE A FEYGRIE) AR 1,061,0007T
REWREHRERS ARK72,318,0007T
BAEESSHENFEI7HRERANHEERT
R REAT - RIEBF B BEHRELRE16
FHENFNTEE  ZERSWIEHEFER
HEEEMNENEGBENNT Bt %%
REeREMENEARZHHENA - HEH
AREMEESNABRBERAEINEE
N Wt AFREEEMNEREE - ¥E
WARERSZRSNARBERAEMNE

B e

ERFTRER LS EXHEANGE - 2
JIRKERS ARECEERAERD
ATZhE U BEREREESE
A7 RBE (BRMBREREZE
g) —RERAREELHREERHEE]
BHEMAEEZEY BABEMBRE
ERIF 1658 CRBERNERE B E
AFE7RBE (BARMBREREZE
g) —REBEFARLERNREEHEZ
BH - B EE MU ER - Eitt 0 SR
MEMBHMAMESFENGLD  AEE/T
EEMFHERTARERE —REE -
AN AEBEDERKETER TR - N
EEAFNERBEREMEREERF16
5% XA VIE e ) RETFE R YIRS
EAN PR MBI LRER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing rule”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss ("FVTPL") that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 "“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 "“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint venture
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)
The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of financial
position included in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an

alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
including obligation to provide goods or services to customers on
complementary basis and customer’s options to acquire additional
goods or services for free or at a discount in future granted under
loyalty reward programmes, the Group considers likelihood of
options that will be exercised and allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a
promised good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customer.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled using
the most likely amount, which better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group is entitled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # & —
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines the
transaction price based on issued invoices to concessionaires to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Accounting for unredeemed gift certificate and loyalty points
under loyalty reward programmes

The unredeemed gift certificate and loyalty points under loyalty
reward programs are recorded as contract liabilities, and only reflect
the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e. reflect anticipated
breakage. Breakage will need to be estimated considering the
guidance on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well
as the Group's historical experience with gift certificate and loyalty
points under loyalty reward programmes. Revenue should be
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift certificate
and loyalty points redeemed in that period and likely to result in the
acceleration of revenue when the possibility of redemption becomes
remote.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 H & — %
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the Group acts as an
agent for concessionaire sales as the Group does not control the
specific goods provided by the concessionaires before goods
transferred to a customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below.

Goods, services, interests and dividends
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales of goods
by the relevant shops based on certain percentage of turnover in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When the concessionaires
fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of contracts, the relevant shops are required to pay the
minimum guarantee amount and hence the minimum guarantee
amount is recognised as income at that time.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group's customer loyalty scheme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is not
recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction —
but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to
receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than construction in progress) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production or
for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost comprises prepaid lease payments,
development and construction expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to the development.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price at which the
property can be realised less related expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an income in the period in which they are incurred.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest includes
both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted for as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as if the leasehold
land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in a foreign operation), in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Management of the Group periodically reviews inventories for slow
moving, obsolescence or declines in market value.

This review requires the management of the Group to estimate the
net realisable value based upon assumptions about future demand
and market conditions. If the estimate of net realisable value is
below the cost of inventories, the Group will record a write-down of
inventories for the difference between cost and net realisable value,
which will result in a corresponding increase in cost of sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset

that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss is included in the “Interest and investment
income” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS ¢ (including trade and
other receivables, dividend receivable from an associate, amount
due from a joint venture and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued))

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued))

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over three year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKAS 17
"Leases”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on a
collective basis by considering:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables and amounts due from customers
are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related
parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
assets is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
managers together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

J the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised into
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 23.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

J disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG

DS

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FEESHBE(HE)

@I A (F)

EHEE (&)

EHMEEZDBRARZHE (R=ZF—/1

F—H—HEAEENFHE ERIE T

A1) (#)

() BIFEFABZZEREE(E)
BATEAABRSZEREERR
FEZ2Y  EAREHEMSIH
MR EERBRTER - N E
SRR ZWERERFECESR
BERBMZEMBREHFAE - A5
ARz RER AR - A FE
VAP £ 23 Ffr ittt 2 75 BB E

iy EBERREWIER
B e WA B A B B E 3 AT AT
BREZHETEEMEE BUE
SERTISIRE - RVIAIERE - B
Ko FEUR AR X (B2 45 UK AR 3k I ELAth JiE
WEERIE ) 1R B SH X AN R ERR R 0%
FTE - WA RIRE -

MBWATIERERNXHER - I
R EIE W RSN R ZF B
WARERX -

eHEERE(R-_FE—/\F—H—HEH
BB & ERE U HT)

ERMEE (BAHEABRZEREER
) EREREMRRIESEARETR °

ERMEENBEEERBBRREMARREA
EREANVITERZEMEERELLZ
—HAAZHEEMMXBFZERELRE

SEEREEMSE  REZTBEERA
B

. BITARYETNERMBREE - %

. B MARBEBNKTEEBENS
FAD K

. &R A A e FR i A Sk B T B4R
i

«  WECHEERUBEEMABA
EBTE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # & —

T-N\E+-AS+—ALEE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 January 2018) (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture and amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets is estimated individually,
or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal,
its value in use and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG

DS

%

EIEFBR ()

B B

BRMHSTTRR  EEAARRER
S5 B 30 57 EL PTG L IR BRI B & -

BT BN AR B R %S M fmE
BRKARAX ZMEANREZREER
BamER e RRME  TBREERASE
BEBE B AR N BEIERS
BEMNBF@E  RERa IR R P
BRIFELEWA - B RGRE TFIEERM -
RIEREEERFHABBEERaEER -

R BRI BN E R EC EE AR
18 - SAE R M AN SR BB (1 AN B B 15 4R B)
(X #& BIR AR A) < BB E - Thi
H B A AT 2 AR R s HERR -

RARER KA
EREFRRRENHR  ERERH
AR A SR FIE H -

BHEEEA

MR R AR B IR RIS IATERT 2
SAHARITRBN SRR - A EHE
BRNERASER KRIES—HBBYE
BEEUNELRATFHZNEAANEEK
7 o

EMREENNEASEE  HERRE
BRREN (W TE - HEMFR) #RaE -

EETRE MG RIR

FEFIIA MR 3FT I 2 A SR B R A BURES -+ 2
AREFARRER L ARER 2 B
RAEREE T 5 RRR © b5 R
BERRDABEERR AR ABAEMH
ZARAKRE - ERBRAGREEHE
BFTHA ©

AEt RAERBRRESHEEM - et
FHZERTERBELAFHERT 2R - Al
ERZURER G AR 2B - e
R BB MORKRAR - BN BREERT &
Al AR B R SR HA R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses of approximately RMB680.1 million (2017:
RMB609.4 million), due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
estimated future assessable profits or taxable temporary difference
are more than previously estimated, a material recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which the revised estimate takes place.

Provision of ECL of trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings/
past due status as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 35 and 20 respectively.

Estimated impairment of interests in associates and a joint
venture

In determining whether there is an impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows to be
generated by its associates and joint venture. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and joint venture and the share
of the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associates and joint venture. As at 31 December
2018, the Group’s interests in associates and interest in a joint
venture were RMB3,337.9 million (2017: RMB3,069.3 million) and
RMB386.3 million (2017: RMB391.2 million) respectively. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

L-‘iesw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

5. Turnover and Segment Information 5. EXFERIMEHR
Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for goods EREBEASEFARMIINAETHES
sold by the Group to external customers, net of discounts and sales m A B 4 % FE MR SR IR R T A0 K SH AR R
related taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and HRABFERES ZWA - RIEWA
rental income during the year, and is analysed as follows: NRBEWA - ZHHnT
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () BHEFHEITSENBADIM
customers
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBT T
Types of goods or service & me R Rl
Sales of goods — direct sales EmiHE — BEHE 453,950 439,427
Income from concessionaire sales KERFRTEEEE 2 /A 608,908 666,143
Service income PR 75 U A 39,053 36,188
Total goods and service wEmkRS (FERBRE
(under HKFRS 15/HKAS 18) RRAIENSHBE G LR
185 T) 1,101,911 1,141,758
Rental income (under HKAS 17) HEWA (BESTEL
E175T) 81,841 81,027
1,183,752 1,222,785
By geographical locations RERE
Hong Kong 6 33,951 59,258
The PRC +H 1,149,801 1,163,527
1,183,752 1,222,785
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR
At point in time 7 5 {8 PR [ B
Sales of goods — direct sales EmiHE —BEHE 453,950 439,427
Over time P& 2 055 ] e 3R
Income from concessionaire REFHFEREEE WA 608,908 666,143
Service income AR 7 YA 39,053 36,188
647,961 702,331
Rental income HEWA 81,841 81,027
1,183,752 1,222,785
The cost of sales are analysed as HEK RS
follows:
Cost of goods sold — direct sales ERBEEKRST —BEHEE 333,888 297,969
Other cost of sales H A $EE KA 41,302 59,440
375,190 357,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

5.

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred to customers, being at the
point the customer purchases goods at department
stores. Payment of transaction price is due immediately
at the point the customer purchases the goods.

Income from concessionaire sales is generated from sales
of goods by the relevant concessionaires based on
certain percentage of sales in accordance with the terms
of contracts. When the concessionaires fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income. The Group recognised revenue in
the net amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for the service, which is the
commission it is entitled upon the sale of goods by the
concessionaire. The concessionaire simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the Group's
performance in processing each sales transaction as and
when each transaction is processed.

Service income is generated from the Group's
promotion, product display and billboards services at
its department stores. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time.

5.

ERER 7 IEFR (&)

(ii)

HEFSNZENER
AEBERAXAEEPANZIAT
T2RFZHBA

HEMBEEMS - WATIRE
miEHEERTER (EP
RBEEEBEERE) ER -
RGEBRZFEREFBER

an i BB 21 51 -

KEMERSATER2EmEE
WA+ THIRIBEA RHER T 285
EETANLAE - BFFE
TERBEIRIR A R ER &K
REWARS - RIKIRE S FHE
RBREAN - AEEARESHE
SFERRERWA - NEER LA
BRZMRT - BN RTEEH
EEmFARKBRZAE - B
RREEERRZZE - FTE
BRI Y ER B B FEAN S B Ba 72
BIRHER H 2 Mz

RIFWAEE B RNEE 2
B EBEEARTERNRE
EhE - ZRERBEESERE
B EHER

Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PWMEHEREFESNHRTENEEZ
performance obligation for contracts with customers RZE®
Loyalty points
under loyalty
reward Gift
programmes Certificates
BHEBTET
WEERD 7%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT
Within one year —FR" 6,396 982
The customer loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes BRI THNEERD RESH
and gift certificates have expiration period of one year and R—FEHR TP AIRER B
can be redeemed anytime by customers within one year after FFEES B HES R —FAEM
grant of the loyalty points or issue of the gift certificates. The RrE#ME - EXHBEZSEEASE
amounts disclosed above represent the Group’s expectation EEAEPEL AR -
on the timing of redemption made by customers.
Liestyte S Group Limited - Annuaj rey,,, . 207
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

—E-N\F+A=+—-HILFE

Turnover and Segment Information (continued) 5. EXFERIWMBERA)
Segment information EMER
The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single REEEM B mE LR FESF [ LEH ] -
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” focusing $E EReXBEBEE K20 &
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business. AREREE  TERME F‘ﬁ%ﬁ‘nLﬁ lid
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of internal f‘%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ BEVBIRE LRI
management reports prepared in accordance with accounting B RERGRRABERRERT  AHE
policies conform with HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the fi<<‘%/9%ﬁA(r%f”‘%ﬂ%ﬁ}\l)(ﬂﬂ$
chief operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the chief executive of RIMITERAREY) TR - BB ER A
the Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis by EEEBRM R E EE DI
location.
The CODM reviews the profit for the year of the Group as a whole to BREEREABHAEBEEBF AR
make decisions about resource allocation. The operation of the o MEHERDERSE - REBE XA
Group constitutes one single operating segment under HKFRS 8 BANBRERAFRAT 2 E—LED
and accordingly no separate segment information other than entity- AR - E UL 2 51 8 S R AN (E
wide information is presented. Bl EE R o
The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total ﬁ/\lﬂﬂliﬁ REEVEZ S ERBBAR
turnover of the Group for both years. EELEE10% -
Geographical information B EH
Analysis of the Group's turnover and non-current assets by RATEMEE D 2 REB L EERIFRE
geographical locations are detailed below: BEINMAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Turnover e
Hong Kong e 33,951 59,258
The PRC i 1,149,801 1,163,527
1,183,752 1,222,785
Non-current asset (note) FREBEE (M)
Hong Kong B — 1,165
The PRC i 7,616,170 7,138,166
7,616,170 7,139,331
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, interest in a joint Mt FRBDEETRIENEE R EEE - R—MH
venture and deferred tax assets. BELEERIRERIBEE -
R2E =
6&@%@5 - B /1§5§\
A B




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Other Income, Gains and Losses 6. HA - s REE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AR¥ETFTT
Management fee income ERBRA 48,747 49,674
Project income ERER N 1,853 2,283
Government subsidies (note a) BT e (KitEa) 9,866 8,803
Net exchange gain (loss) HIE N (E18) 461 (36,556)
Credit card recharges ERREAED 20,853 24,308
Income from lessees B EFAABBA 8,590 9,865
Overprovision on compensation for early EREERINEEC RS EE
termination of counters —_ 4,744
Allowance for credit losses on trade JEW IR EE B EEME (I:E20)
receivables (note 20) (1,681) —
Impairment loss recognised on other H i JE R IE FERR 2 R B & 18
receivables (note 20) (Fff 5£20) — (11,130)
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in an R {EHE — B2 A F D 2 Wz
associate (note b) (M Eb) — 11,297
Others H A 12,177 12,192
100,866 75,480
Notes: B 5T -
(a) The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local (a) ZeEaTEM TS BE TOBRFME -

authorities for subsidising its operational activities and promotional
activities conducted by the Group. All of them had no specific condition
attached.

(b) A gain on deemed disposal of interests in an associate of RMB11,297,000 (b)
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017 to account for
the change in the Group's direct equity interest in its associate, 3t Bl 25 4k i%
D ABBRZA A ("Beiguo”), which was resulted from the issue of new shares to
certain eligible employees (note 16(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

7. Interest and Investment Income 7. FEREREWRA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
Interest income on bank deposits RITTFERZFBUWA 21,146 17,588
Interest income from a joint venture KE—HEELEZFEWA 1,070 1,065
Net changes in fair value of financial assets ZAFEF AEGZ EMEE L
at FVTPL NV EHE)FE 1,736 5,576
Dividend income from financial assets at EBATEFAERZCREEL
FVTPL DL UN 250 1,645
Investment income from financial assets at HEAFEHFABEGZEMEEZ
FVTPL REWA 39,283 22,676
Imputed interest income from loans JE W B R 1 A B A
receivables (included in other receivables (BREE—FERIHANHEA
due after one year) B AR 70 5,554 2,085
Other interest income H A A B WA 195 2,171
69,234 52,806
8. Finance Costs 8. ®MERK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® TR AEETTT
Interests on bank borrowings RITEBEFE 77,832 53,969
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction W R ERIRERERTYE
in progress and properties under ER e
development (77,832) (50,625)
— 3,344
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs BREERARIENBRARRFENSE
incurred by the subsidiaries on borrowings whose funds were RENERIENMBERTMENECHE
specifically invested in the construction in progress and properties EREERA o

under development during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Taxation 9. ¥HE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
The tax charge comprises: MIEX HBETIIER
Current tax: RERFRIA ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH 1,369 2,200
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI ERTEH 114,631 119,582
Withholding tax TEHH 23,150 24,615
139,150 146,397
(Over) under provision in prior years: WEFRE(B%E) TREE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEBMEH - (17)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEBERER — 40
— 23
Deferred tax charge (note 19) RAEFIAZ H (HH3E19) 952 9,925
140,102 156,345

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the
Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations
outside Hong Kong and PRC.

L-‘iesw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

AN S

Taxation (continued)

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

=t+—HILEFE

BiIE ()
REEBAT B A
3R AR R BLAT 2

BxEkHMEER
HERMT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETF T
Profit before taxation & F54 A 5 A 707,984 640,871
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% LRSI E25%E 2 Hi1A 176,996 160,218
Tax effect of share of profit of Bl —BaERERMZ
a joint venture MIERE (8,598) (9,363)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates FEEEE N AR M 2 I F & (84,940) (72,318)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBDIMAZBIBEFE
tax purpose (9,054) (12,286)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax AR S 2 IRIBEFE
purpose 11,924 26,173
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERAHMIBEBECHETE 31,939 30,501
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses AR AERTIEERZ
previously not recognised METE (1,734) —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FHEMRIEEERELEZ
operating in other jurisdictions WBARTRMEZHBTE (539) (1,142)
Underprovision in prior years WEFRE N REE — 23
Withholding tax B 24,108 34,539
Tax charge for the year RNEFRIAXL W 140,102 156,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

10. Profit for the year 10. NFERF

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF AR¥ETFTT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after A & B % (GTA)
charging (crediting): NHIEE
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): FEME (BIsE11) -
Fees e 673 694
Other emoluments Hh 37 B 6,070 6,259
Bonus TE4T 8,868 8,481
Retirement benefits scheme RIRRE B
contributions 15 16
15,626 15,450
Other staff costs, excluding retirement MR R I AN 2
benefits scheme contributions Hih 8 TRA 161,928 161,636
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B K& F 5T 21 2 6,752 7,655
168,680 169,291
Total staff costs BETIRA 184,306 184,741
Release of prepaid lease payments TR HERIEE 65,775 65,775
Less: Amount capitalised in constructionin =~ J§ : TR TR 2 EXL L
progress (note 14) (BF5E14) (48,582) (48,582)
17,193 17,193
Auditor's remuneration Z SR B & 3,271 2,682
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZEZFTE
equipment 111,080 114,024
Rental payments paid under operating REEHOTHELI W RETF
lease in respect of leasehold land and MATATZNZHEE®
buildings to FRIE
— a joint venture — —fAEEMRE 160,574 160,874
— other parties —Hf AL 16,996 18,729
(Gain) loss on disposal/write off of property, H& MR E - BERZFHZ
plant and equipment (W) B8 (22) 484
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ~ BRAX HZFEMK A 333,888 297,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 11. EE - THERKEE#HS
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed REERO EmHRERABEAFEN R
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, FEESRITHAHMSHT
is as follows:
2018 —E-N\F
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
HTEE  FUMES BIFHTES
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung,  ChanChor LamKwong  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Ling, Amy Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
g2 RER MR R RER st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R

Fees e 169 126 126 126 126 673
Other emoluments Hio &
Salaries and other benefits HeREMET 6,070 — - — - 6,070
Bonus* TEAT* 8,868 — — — - 8,868
Retirement benefits scheme RIKBHFIEIE R
contributions 15 - - - - 15
Total emoluments MemE 15,122 126 126 126 126 15,626
2017 —E—+tEF
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
HTEE  FHTES BUEMTESR
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung,  ChanChor  Lam Kwong Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas # Ling, Amy Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
£y Bty MK R RIEX RE st

RMB'O0 ~ RMB'0O0  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETRL ARETR

Fees ik 174 130 130 130 130 694
Other emoluments Hio &
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 6,259 — — — — 6,259
Bonus* TEAT* 8,481 — — — — 8,481
Retirement benefits scheme RIKBHFTEIH R
contributions 16 — — — — 16
Total emoluments ikl 14,930 130 130 130 130 15,450
* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the executive * AR ERERBEARENNTESTESE
director’s performance for each of the reporting period. BRSO REMETE ©
i Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the Company. ¢ BB K EMERR B MITHAE -
The executive director's emoluments shown above were for his N ERERITRAHMART RAEEE
services as the chief executive in connection with the management BRERHBRBEZRTESHE -

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 11.
Remuneration (continued)
The non-executive director’s and independent non-executive

directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.

During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the

directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived

any remuneration during both years. Of the five highest paid

individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, one

of them (2017: one) was a director of the Company whose

remuneration is disclosed above and the remaining four (2017: four)

are employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration were as

BEE TRARREEME (&)

A ERRARTHERBEEES —RAEH
TEERBYIFATESHE

REEREFA AEBTEAARRFE
EXNBE - ARSI REMAREE LI
BMAREEZ REXBERAEE - RSF
REFER REESENEEFAHE - #E
ZE-N\FF+ZA=T—HIEFE K&
BRE&eRHFALH  —H(ZT—1F:
—R)RARAESF RZMER EXE
o mOMIE(ZT—1F : WA AR

follows: SEREE BEZMeFEHINOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBT R ARBTT
Employees: EE:
Salaries, allowances and other benefits Fe R EEMEF 4,120 4,245
Retirement benefits scheme RORAE FIFT B 3K
contributions 144 62
Performance related incentive payments HRIBEMYIES 2,799 2,261
7,063 6,568

The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

REBAEESHFATZHMNFUTE
:

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —FtF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A" A

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/%8 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7t % 3,000,000/%8 7T — 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 7T & 17,500,0007% 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the four highest paid

employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

L-‘iesw\e

china Group Limited Annual Repo
-

R NFR-B—LF+A=+—
BLEFER  ARBEYEROA&ZSHE
BXNME ARSI WENMAREE LI
RIMAREE 2 R SRR E -

t 2078



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

12. Dividends 12.
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

13. Earnings Per Share 13.
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

B E
Hz_2—)\F+_A=+—HIF¥E -
RATARE ML BRBRFIERMNHEIRRK
B(ZE—tF 8-

BRAEFN

ARAHEEANEREERERN SRR T
RBATEIEME

BENEFENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARETT

Profit for the year attributable to the owners Bt EGRERZFIMF 2
of the Company for the purpose of basic KABIEB ANERAFE

earnings per share Y ) 338,074 269,590
Number of shares R EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
‘000 ‘000
T’ T AR
Weighted average number of ordinary A EERERAT 2 Ik
shares for the purpose of basic earnings FHLERER
per share 1,520,780 1,602,587

Diluted earnings per share are not presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

OB —=_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. NE - -BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
&®E - BE
BF HENEEE BEEREE LERRB AE EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR
COST R
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+%¥—F—H 2,176,326 728,177 156,531 61,668 6,235 1,398,372 4,527,309
Exchange adjustment [E R R — (833) (277) (335) — — (1,445)
Additions NE — 135 726 1,158 774 414,686 417 479
Disposal/written off HE /M (1,383) — (49) (365) — — (1,797)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A
=+-H 2,174,943 727,479 156,931 62,126 7,009 1,813,058 4,941,546
Exchange adjustment BN AR — 354 17 103 — — 574
Additions NE — 116 110 2,366 440 524,071 527,103
Disposal/written off HE /s — — (127) (398) (926) — (1,451)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HE—FHEAR
(F35E31) — (10999) (3,654) (4,612) — — (19,265)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NE+=A
=+-A 2,174,943 716,950 153,377 59,585 6,523 2,337,129 5,448,507
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+%—A—H 368,528 537,294 76,243 47,410 4,084 — 1,033,559
Exchange adjustment EHAE — (800) (258) (279 — — (1,337)
Provided for the year FRITE 61,827 41123 7,866 2,698 510 — 114,024
Eliminated on disposal/written off HE RS 922) — (27) (290) — — (1,239)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+%F+=A
=+-H 429433 577,617 83,824 49,539 4,594 — 1,145,007
Exchange adjustment B SRR — 348 m 202 — — 661
Provided for the year ERTE 62,330 37,484 7,933 2,842 491 - 111,080
Eliminated on disposal/written off HE R/ - — (114) (323) (853) - (1,290)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HE—fAHEL A
(F5E31) - (10,809) (3,452) (4,155) — — (18,416)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\F+=A
=+-H 491,763 604,640 88,302 48,105 4,232 — 1,237,042
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+2A
=+-H 1,683,180 112,310 65,075 11,480 2,29 2,337,129 4,211,465
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A
=+-H 1,745,510 149,862 73,107 12,587 2415 1,813,058 3,796,539
Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs capitalised ERIRAEFAEERNMEZEERNERK
and prepaid lease payments capitalised during the year, amounting TBRHEFRIE - 9515 ARES59,460,0007T
to RMB59,460,000 (2017: RMB38,619,000) and RMB48,582,000 (2017: (ZZ—+%F: AR¥38,619,0007T) RAR
RMB48,582,000), respectively. 48,582,000t (ZZE—+F: AR

48,582,0007T) ©

china Group Limited Annual ReDor



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease
terms or 40 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease
terms or 10 years

Plant and machinery 5to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 37.

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise land use right in the

14. W% BERFRE (R)

BRAERTRZIN Ll BELREBER
B0k T AR RISREER - MERE
BT FRFEFE

BF BHEAFRLM+F
(ABREE RE)

HEMEXE BEOFRL+F
(ABREE RE)

R Kt 2m hEE+F

Bl BERE  RBF

Bigi]
"= S

ERFEEZHIEER  HL2HME37 -

BENBEERER
AEEZENBERERFLRRENL

PRC: S {3 P A
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ET—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBF T AREBTF T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEMBEOINA :

Current portion BIHRER 1 65,775 65,775
Non-current portion JEBNERER 1 2,224,965 2,290,740
2,290,740 2,356,515

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 37.

16. Interests in Associates

BEEREEZHIBTER  BLHMEIT -

16. REEE N TR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETTT
Unlisted, at cost LT AR 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of additional 738 1F 4 [ Uk B8 — R & 2 5585k
interest in an associate in prior years T E 2 TR 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest & {F F E 18R H & — & Q7
in an associate in prior years T 25 i 7 A 2 W s 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and other ~ FE{G U I#E 2 &7 R E 2
comprehensive income, Wz - BRI E
net of dividends 1,999,424 1,730,830
3,337,937 3,069,343

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in the

following associates:

Form of business

Place/country of

establishment/

Principal place

16. RBE QR R
KRB N\FR-B—tF+-A=+—

g X A R

B AEER TS

Proportion of nominal value

of issued capital/registered Proportion

(&)

Name of entity structure incorporation of operation capital held by the Group of voting power held  Principal activities
ST/ AEEMBERTRE/
ERER EBERES EfEE ER FELEHH MR AEELL R RRLA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\F |ZT—+F |ZB-NF |ZT—+F
Beiren Group (note a) Incorporation The PRC The PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
L AEE (HiFEa) Bl fpAva F B HE group of companies
engaging in the
operation of department
stores, supermarkets,
retailing and property
leasing
f=EEE #BH FER
NEBEXB L EERF
ZREER
Beiguo (note b) Incorporation The PRC The PRC 15.05% 15.05% 15.05% 15.05%  Investment holding of a
LB (Bt 3tb) il FE gl group of companies
engaging in the
operation of department
stores, supermarkets,
retailing and property
leasing
REEEE  #BH - TER
NEREXBZEEART
ZREER
LB %X TES  Incorporation The PRC The PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the PRC
BREERF Bl I FE ETERETEER
(“Future Mall")
(note ¢)
(TEXTES))
(FizEe)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
EREARAR D Ava B FE company engaging in the
operation of restaurants
inthe PRC
EREEERBEE IR
ZREER
Notes: B

(a) The Group's 60% owned subsidiary, Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity
interest of 49% (2017: 49%) in Beiren Group.

(b) At 31 December 2018, )il db JB IR & B R A 7] ("JBJR"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Wingold Limited, has a right to appoint at least one (2017:
one) director of Beiguo and has appointed two (2017: two) directors of
Beiguo, out of seven (2017: seven) directors in total. JEJ& held direct equity
interest of 15.05% (31 December 2017: 15.05%) in Beiguo and has
significant influence over it. The change in JBJR's direct equity interest of
Beiguo from 16.05% to 15.05% during the year ended 31 December 2017
was accounted for as a deemed disposal (note 6(b)).

mgww
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 H & — %

16.

—NF+_A=+—HBILtFE

Interests in Associates (continued) 16.

Notes: (continued)

(c) At 31 December 2018, the Group's 60% (2017: 60%) owned subsidiary,
Ample Sun Group Limited, held equity interest of 49% (2017: 49%) in Future
Mall. In addition, 51% (2017: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was being
directly held by Beiguo. The Group has a right to appoint two (2017: two)
directors of Beiguo, out of seven (2017: seven) directors in total.

REE X AER (&)

Mgt ()

© WZZ—-N\&E+=-B=+—8" zwi@%ﬁ
60% (ZZT—+ 45 : 60%) Bz Z B A
REEBBRA Tﬁﬁs‘aiTF%w%(,ﬁ
—HF 1 49%) BRANKERS o AN - AR TES
51%(ZZF—+F : 51%) BAE RSBt EE
BEEA RILBEARKER(ZE— L%+

Z)EEFR  AEEAREEME (ZT—
FoRMB)ES -
The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set EEAERBRENT Z2HEERNT -
out below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREF T
Total assets BER 13,194,832 12,657,397
Total liabilities féffi@ 7,250,418 7,242,426
Net assets AEFE 5,944,414 5,414,971
Group's share of associates’ net assets REBEEEHE R ATEEFE 3,337,937 3,069,343
Revenue W= 6,987,875 7,947,574
Profit and total comprehensive income for — ANF & & Fll R B 2 E U A
the year 442,380 316,142
Group's share of profit and total REBE BB ERFRFEE
comprehensive income of associates for i ) 1 48 2 T W as
the year 339,760 289,272
Summarised financial information of material associate EARBENTZHEERBE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

associate is set out below. The summarised financial information

below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial

statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies

in conformity with that adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it is

accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

4&\’*@

LSEFRRT Se
%

ERAKREEABERR 2 BERNGE
AT - UTHBEMBERRBZR

AZHBHRER2I 22
B-HmE

EAEERAEEME—EKRH

ERAEE

IR REIARE
FTHUR RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued)

16. REBE QN TER (A)

Beiren Group EAE
2018 2017
—E2-N\#F —FtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AR¥ETFTT
Current assets MENE E 7,126,343 7,082,751
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,054,561 5,556,775
Current liabilities mEAE 7,173,941 7,121,270
Non-current liabilities B EE 70,800 111,953
Non-controlling interests JEVE R AE 1,363,142 1,239,021
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR®ETFTT
Revenue g 6,927,678 7,875,952
Profit and total comprehensive income for N5 [Z 5 | I 48 2 UL
the year 442,797 313,457
Group's share of profits and other AEEEGEILAREARFE
comprehensive income of Beiren Group i A R B 2 E A
for the year 339,969 287,930
Dividend declared from Beiren Group to the R F NI AEBEHAREE 2
Group during the year EEIRRE 90,218 120,632

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Beiren

BRI A RERER A B 75 R o R &

AR 7 BRI E S B B R Rl

Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to A A Bt AL E 2 EEFE
owners 4,573,021 4,167,282
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership  ANEBERILASBIZL B EZES
interest in Beiren Group (excluding the & 2 AN SN |
non-controlling interests of Beiren Group) &%) 49% 49%
2,240,780 2,041,968
Add: Interest in Beiren Group in respect of  fill © A& E AL ASE A THE
the Group's direct further interest in NAMBEERE - FEEMR
Beiren Group's certain subsidiaries IEAEERER 1,093,032 1,023,041
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AL B ML AL B 2 FEEE
Beiren Group 3,333,812 3,065,009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued)
Information of associate that is not individually material

16. RBHE N RER ()
EREEAZBE A TER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET T
The Group's share of (loss) profit and total N5 E &5 (E518) & 7 &
comprehensive (expense) income waem () WA (209) 1,342
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AN BN AR & A 5l < BREE
this associate 4,125 4,334
17. Interest in a Joint Venture 17. R—REEEL¥EER
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interest in the N_E-NERZZE—+FE+-_A=+—

following joint venture:

Place of

Form of business establishment/

issued capital held

T
H: AEBEFEBETIAEELE RS

Proportion of

nominal value of

Proportion of voting

Name of entity structure operation by the Group power held Principal activities
AEBFECRT
ERER EBERES R/ g RAEELH FEREELS  FEXH
TENBHTESERAR Sino-foreign equity joint ~ The PRC 50% 50%  Property holding and leasing
(Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd.) venture 2 NEREREE

THARAELR

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of

BELERBEEIAARK

accounting:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTT
Cost of unlisted investment in a —HAEREFLTREZ
joint venture %N 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition profits and JEME g1 2w R A2 E WA
total comprehensive income, IR AR B
net of dividends 14,215 19,165
386,297 391,247

&@%@far&ma -z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 17.
The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest
in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance in conformity with that
adopted by the Group.

R—BEeELEES (H)
ARARERAECE Y B2 MHEN
BLRMT c ATHBEREEARAED
RIMBRER2IZEE  RIERERE
B BB BE R -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF T —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBEF T
Non-current assets IERBEE 988,740 982,956
Current assets mEEE 21,604 72,225
Current liabilities nEBBE 237,750 272,687
The above amounts of assets and liabilities F#llEEMEBESEEIE
include the followings: WTIER -
Cash and cash equivalents BaNIREEEY 8,120 27,294
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  RBI &Rt B & (T RIEETEX
and other payables) Ko HoAth & < 3R IE) 187,257 250,445
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARETTT
Revenue Wz 200,658 201,291
Profit for the year RE [ 5 F 68,780 74,901
Dividend income recognised by the Group ~ FAZAEE 2 R 2 KRB A
during the year 39,340 36,437
Group's share of profit and total TEBELEEERERMNR
comprehensive income of the joint BMEEWA
venture 34,390 37,451

The above profit for the year includes the following:

NEARFRGEMBEATER

2018 2017

—E2-N\#F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREBFTT

Depreciation and amortisation e Rk E 35,153 21,396
Interest income U A 166 585
Interest expense MR 8,729 9,515
Income tax expense SRzt 27,228 29,293

china Group Limited Annual Repo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 17. RA—REEEL¥ER (F)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB AR AR & B IS IR R P R
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the R—EEELEER 2 REEYE

consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
—B-N\F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Net assets of the joint venture EELECEETFE 772,594 782,494
Proportion of the Group's ownership AN B A R w1
interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interestina AEER —HAEELE#ER 2
joint venture BRMEE 386,297 391,247
18. Properties under Development 18. BERFY=
Properties under development comprise two office towers of the ERANEDEREENTE LBGER
Group's commercial complex development project in Shanghai, the XERBEATPMENBRAKNE BEZ
PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had T-N\FTZA=T—HFIEFE K&
additions of RMB120,049,000 (2017: RMB141,242,000) to properties B 2R i e 5 A AR 120,049,000
under development, which include eligible capitalised borrowing TT(ZT—tF: ARKE141,242,0007T) + H
costs of RMB18,372,000 (2017: RMB12,006,000). The Group intends AR 18,372,00070 (ZZE—+F : AR
to sell these two office towers in part or in whole when the sale 12,006,0007T) A& & &R B E KA o
permit is granted by relevant PRC authorities. Details of pledge of EPBEABBPIR TG ERTILE A%
assets are set out in note 37. B2 PR EERET S LD EHE -
BEAEE  FIEF2HMEE37 -
19. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets) 19. EZEHEBEEG(EE)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for N TARERIBELESRRMBREEN 2D
financial reporting purposes: #r:
2018 2017
—EF-N\F —F—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE A& — (378)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBRE 32,382 31,424
32,382 31,046

OB —=_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

19. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets) (continued) 19. EEHBEB(EE)(E)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

NTAERR EEEMBEERAE
P RR BB ERMEE

Distributable
profits of PRC

Accelerated subsidiaries,
tax associates and
depreciation a joint venture Total
TENEAR
BE AR R
—BeERE
EBIEFTE ZAUIEAE L
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H (408) 21,500 21,092
Exchange adjustment M R B 29 — 29
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) KRB MR (M3E9) 1 31,424 31,425
Released upon dividends declared  Eki% BEE T (H:E9)
(note 9) — (21,500) (21,500)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+tF
+=—A=+—H (378) 31,424 31,046
Exchange adjustment e o (17) — (a7
(Credit) charge to profit or loss R (G A) kR
(note 9) (FiEES) ©6) 23,719 23,713
Released upon dividends declared ~ ERAKEEE T
(note 9) (FiEES) — (22,761) (22,761)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HE—HWE AR
(B &E31) 401 — 401
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—)\F
+t—A=+—8 — 32,382 32,382

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to
10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB23,719,000 (2017: RMB31,424,000)
in respect of distributable profit of PRC entities amounting of
RMB420,990,000 (2017: RMB400,844,000) has been provided during
the year ended 31 December 2018. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and associates for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
RMB659,738,000 (2017: RMB483,027,000). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is
in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

19. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets) (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB680.1 million (2017: RMB609.4 million) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of those tax losses for both years due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of relevant entities. The
unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries operated in the

20.

PRC will expire as follows:

19. EEBEEE(EE)(H)
R-ZE—-NE+-_A=+—0 A&E=EEH
AERAREEENABARESLIHEE T
(ZZ2—+F: ARB6V4EET) * AIHA
EIRE AR ES - RSFREFH @R
HHE

B g% M S 2 LATRR - B i

HRERBEREDRERREE - £

B E BB B A R E £ R FERBIIA BB

BeRTHEMR I :

Tax losses expiring in REFRIBZF4 2018 2017
=2-N\#F —FtF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBFTT

2018 —T-N\F — 50,175
2019 —E-NF 135,816 135,860
2020 —E-TF 156,363 156,380
2021 —E -4 144,970 144,990
2022 —E- 115,150 122,005
2023 —F= 127,754 —
680,053 609,410

During the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately RMB50.2
million (2017: RMB9.4 million) tax losses expired.

Trade and Other Receivables

BE_Z-\F+_A=+t—HILFE"
WMARES02BET(ZF—tF: AR

VABETL) MBIERIEE B -

20. FEUWR BRI K H fth B WK IR

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Trade receivables FEUBR 3R
— goods and services (under HKFRS 15/ —EmkRE (REBVBHRE
HKAS 18) HERF 155,/ BEE AR
E185% ) 60,801 44,631
— operating leases receivables (under — RE RS EYGRIE (REBERT
HKAS 17) ARIE175T) 7,574 11,611
68,375 56,242
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (1,681) —
66,694 56,242
Prepayments Ta I FRIE 250 1,989
Deposits paid [EENE& 4,635 1,638
Value added tax ("VAT") receivable RIS E R ([HEEF]) 96,967 83,168
Loan receivables (note) W E R (K5 127,684 127,684
Others Hip 42,567 52,052
272,103 266,531
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEEEE (22,253) (22,253)
249,850 244,278
Total trade and other receivables JFE Y BR 3 N At R U IR 4B KE 316,544 300,520
Less: Non-current portion (note) A EmENE S (MHEE) (135,323) (127,684)
181,221 172,836

x@®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. EWEBRA R EfbEWRRRIE (&)

Note: The balance mainly represented the outstanding balance of loans to certain
employees of Beiguo for the purpose of enabling them to acquire shares of
Beiguo. The loans were secured against the share interests in Beiguo held
by the respective employees. The loans are for a period of three years from
the date of grant in August 2017 and bear interests at a rate equivalent to

the benchmark interest rate as quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to RMB60,801,000 and
RMB44,631,000 respectively.

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments. Its major trade
receivables arising from credit card sales are normally settled in one
to two business days and the rental income receivables are normally
settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged analysis of those
trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses, if any, presented
based on the invoice date, which approximates the respective
revenue recognition dates:

M SREBAMIEETEREEROREES
£ AR EATAR BB AL B () o X EFRUAM
BEEFANIL R D EREAER - Z&
RA-ZE—LtFN\ARKH=F BFEZ
RIBPEARBITAMAOELENKAH -

RZZE-—NE+_A=+—"HBHE=-Z
—NF—A—HB XREABFAHNMNERK
R F 5 B A AR #60,801,00000 XA R
44,631,0007T °

AEERBEEHNTEHETEEBR
T BRERIERRADAANK - AEE
ZREERRE —RR—EMETIERRK
B #915 F3 1R 38 5 I — ARTA 30K A e [0 ) /g
WHHESWA - AT REKER (NREEE
B (A)) RERZAH (%8 KRE
FERR B HIAEAT) Z BRER D AT

2018 2017

—EZ-N\F T+t

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBT R ARBEF T

0-30 days OHZ=30H 64,235 53,944
31-60 days 31HZE60H 659 998
61-90 days 61HZE9%0H 169 611
Over 90 days B0 H 1,631 689
66,694 56,242

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB7,574,000 which are past due at the end of the reporting
period. Out of the past due balances, RMB812,000 has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default because
historical experience indicated that such receivables could be
recoverable from the relevant debtors. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balance are debtors, RMB11,611,000 are past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RoEBE-NF+-_A=+—HB ~A&=EHfE
WIE RSB IER RSN  REA
BEAAREET7 57400070 2 FEW R - AE #
iz s sk - AR#812,0007TE B EI90 B
AL MAEEE S ERIENZSER
BRI EEBEESARD - il RRAEE
B AEBEVERZEEHRITEIMK
e

NZE—+F+-_A=+—0 £KE=EE
R RS PR RS AR AR
11,611,00070 2 FEULER + T ANSE @K & e
REBEEE AEETERZSEHT
BRI S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

—E-N\F+A=+—-HILFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

20. FEURBRFR I H {1 UL IE (R)
BERREZERRRORENT

impaired:

2017
—T—+F
RMB'000
ANREFTT

Overdue by: B
1-30 days 1THZE30H 9,313
31-60 days 31THZE6OH 998
61-90 days 61HZE90H 611
Over 90 days HBiE90H 689

11,611

No allowance for doubtful debts had been provided for the year
ended 31 December 2017 on trade receivables. The Group has
provided fully for all trade receivables over 1 year because historical

E-® LA t-A=t—RLFE-
3R R - RSB
BLATA — 2 A b 2 R B AR 2 SR

21.

experience is such that receivables that are past due beyond 1 year # RERELERHIEHOHBERE—F2
are generally not recoverable. FEUWERFR - — AR AR o
An impairment loss for other receivables amounted to RMB11,130,000 AEERBE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—H
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017 as the JLEWEW/JMEH& IE/WTEES?EJ\E%
management considered such outstanding balance was uncollectible. 11,130,0007t - AERERAZSREEH
AW -
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables: HAh EWRIERHERRBHE 2 EHNT ¢
2017
—T—tF
RMB'000
AREBT T
1 January —H—H 11,123
Impairment losses recognised BRI EE R 11,130
31 December +=-—A=+—8H 22,253
Details of impairment assessment on trade and other receivables for HE_ZT-\F+A=+—RHIEFEZ
the year ended 31 December 2018 are out in note 35. JT'EHKEEM&ﬁMJEHﬁZm B2 BER IS
BRI 35
Inventories 21. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+ &
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBFT
Merchandise held for resale HEFEEEm 49,574 42,555

LERBARAT g
o8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

22. Amount due from (to) a Joint Venture 22. EW(ERN) —BEEeELERE

At 31 December 2018, the amount due from a joint venture included RZZ—NF+HA=+—8 EK—FH
an entrusted loan to a joint venture of RMB30,000,000 (2017: SECERERERETAECENETE
RMB30,000,000), which was unsecured and carried fixed rate of FRAR#30,000,000 (ZFE—+HF : AR
4.35% (2017: 3.50%) per annum and interest receivables of #30,000,0007T) * /A IR E E F 7
RMB584,000. The management of the Group expects that the EA35% (ZF—+%F :350%) 5t 8 - AR
amount will be realised within twelve months from the end of the FEUFI B AR 584,0007T - NEEEIRE
reporting period, hence, this amount was classified as current EREHEcHEENMERRT _EAARNE
assets. BEl NeBEIBRRBEE -
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amount due to the joint venture RZE—N\FE_ZT—+F+_A=+—
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint H  EBN—EeECEZRIEREIRE
venture. The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and N—EEECECHERERE - LFIA
repayable on demand. RELT SERARERFFER -

23. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or 23. EAFEFFABBZZERMEE

Loss
2018 2017
—E-N\F L
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFABRZESREE
— listed equity securities in Hong Kong REE EMRE (H5Ea)
(note a) —_ 71,115
— structured investment products —EEREESR (Fisb)
(note b) 540,860 785,500
540,860 856,615

Notes: B 5T -

(a) The balance at 31 December 2017 represented equity shares listed in Hong (a) REZE—tFF+_A=T—HZERTINE
Kong that were carried at fair value and represented the quoted bid price BETHRE - WikikE AR 2 ERET S 2
in an active market at the end of the reporting period. BAREARTETE -

(b) The balance at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represented structured (b) R \FE_E—+F+-_A=+—H
investment products placed with banks in the PRC, with an expected but AR FRAE P B IRIT 2 BB E
not guaranteed return in the range from 2.20% to 4.70% per annum (2017: @ HEHETRENFE RS EH2.20E
2.20% to 4.90% per annum), depending on the performance of its FAI0E (ZE—+FNFERHEF2.20E
underlying investments, which are mainly bonds and debentures. These F490E) - BT HMEBREERENRER (X
financial assets were measured at FVTPL as their contracted terms do not EREFLEREE) ZERMEERERT
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of EFt ABE - BRESKNERLTNEER
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. HELEERIN TG RAEEASMEZH

B °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

24.

25.

Bank Balances and Cash

At 31 December 2018, bank balances and cash comprised mainly
short-term deposits with original maturity within three months and
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.75% to 4.40%
per annum (2017: 0.75% to 4.90% per annum).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currencies of the
respective group entities:

24. ROTEERRAE

R-ZE—N\FE+=-—F=+—8  R{7&7F
KBRS EFERERRITMSH RS (FF)
ENT075BE4402)(ZF—LF &7
ENF0.75E E4.90F) 9 =18 A N 2 H
ZREEER -

RIOTEEFLRASEETIIAERAEEER
WRE BB AN E M ETEMN TR -

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETF T

us$ e 169,987 153,977
HK$ HBIT 19,064 329,022
189,051 482,999

Trade and Other Payables

25. BNRRREMENRE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT T

Trade payables FETER K 44,926 46,513
Construction payables JET T2 RKIE 54,734 136,900
Concessionaire sales payables e SR B E A 499,573 499,156
Deferred income (note) WA (P EE) 114,798 122,631
Rental deposits received BlHEZRS 72,318 56,241
Accrued expenses FEETE R 33,210 41,368
VAT payable FERISERIIR 28,609 43,742
Interest payables FETFLE 2,684 1,853
Others Hity 81,140 83,486
931,992 1,031,890

Note: Deferred income represented the refundable deposits made by the

customers into the prepaid cards.

&@%@far&ma -z

2, e
4&\\}’{&

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

25. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 25. BRI RHEMENKE (E)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based AT R E SRS BR 3= B 8 R
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BIEBRER D AT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E A

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

0-30 days OHZE30H 33,919 38,867
31-60 days 31THZE60H 2,795 1,603
61-90 days 61AZ90R 2,300 1,393
Over 90 days B E90 H 5,912 4,650
44,926 46,513

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire FE T AR SR I BT A T BB S B R IE 2 1)
sales payables is within 45 days from invoice date. The Group has EEMANRERA MBS AR - RE
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all ERE MG EREIRBEER - HRATA BN
payables are paid within the credit timeframe. FIERNEEBRAZAT

26. Bank Borrowings 26. RITEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and  $R1T{EE RIR1TE AR
are analysed as: WA T4
Secured B 2,109,000 1,375,202
Carrying amount repayable based on BeEHWPEERHI B EEE
contractual repayment dates: ARHEE
Within one year —FR 10,000 5,000
More than one year, but not exceeding ~ —F & E BB T
two years 30,000 10,000
More than two years, but not exceeding ~ M FEE BB =F
three years 60,000 30,000
More than three years, but not exceeding =F{&{E BB Y F
four years 100,000 60,000
More than four years, but not exceeding  PHFEETNBBEAF
five years 1,120,000 100,000
After five years BB RS 789,000 1,170,202
2,109,000 1,375,202
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : I A B B B — & A 2 &
under current liabilities 2 58 (10,000) (5,000)
Amount due after one year —F & F|H 2 I8 2,099,000 1,370,202

mﬂw
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

26. Bank Borrowings (continued)

27.

Variable rate borrowings comprise:

—E- )\ F+ZA=t—-RLLFE

26. $R1T

TEE (&)

/7— SN 1E§/‘TT§

Carrying amount

REE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —tF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB bank borrowings ARBIRITER 2,109,000 1,375,202
The effective interest rates of the borrowings were at 4.41% (2017: BREBRNEREFNRLIN % (ZF—+

4.41%) per annum.

At the end of the year, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities

which are expiring as follows:

F 1 440%) °

RAFER  AEBFRIREIRTRENE
BHIRAT ¢

2018 2017
—EF-N\F —F—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ANREFTT
Floating rate: FE
Within one year (2017: two years) R—FRA( —+F  WE) 341,000 1,074,798
Contract Liabilities BHAE
31/12/2018 1/1/2018
—E-N\F —\F
+=ZA=+—H —H—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Loyalty points under loyalty reward B AR EN AT BT B ARG AR R
programmes B 6,396 2,879*
Unredeemed gift certificates KA ZIES 982 859*
7,378 3,738*

*

of HKFRS 15.

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as current based on
the Group's earliest obligation to transfer goods or services to the

customers.

The contract liabilities balance at 1 January 2018 of RMB3,738,000
was recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December

2018.

6&@

4&\\}’{&

§E¥E/\ =
% /(§\

* B ESHARRAESYHEREERES
SRBIEAR 258 -

\’J ERHRARE —REERARNANE
WENAEEAE RS R A
E)E xFAEZEE DBAMEER -

iﬂﬂi D>

R-TZ-NF-A—BZAaNAaBEHRA
E”rﬁ37380007t: ERBE_ZT-N\F
TZA=T—RIEFE®RR R/ -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

Contract Liabilities (continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes

Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes, customers
who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn one reward
point for every dollar of their spending. For every 5,000 points
earned from cosmetic products and every 10,000 points earned from
non-cosmetic products, customers can redeem gift certificate with
the face value of RMB250 and RMB50, respectively, which can be
redeemed for goods or services offered at the department stores.
Rewards points earned has an expiry period of one year.

Unredeemed gift certificates

The Group sells the gift certificates to the customers who redeems
the gift certificates for goods and services offered at the department
stores. The gift certificates are non-refundable and valid for one year
from the date of issue.

Amount due to Non-Controlling Shareholder of
Subsidiaries

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing. The non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to demand for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period.

L-‘iesw\e

p 152 §
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28.

EHEE (&)
HEBRANAESBEREY BEX
EHBIIT -

BHEBNETHNEERESD

RAREZ B ET 2 HEAHRE
B8 ERARE -T2 E B S ERR
— DS BEERKBERTHIE
5,000% & 3E1b A dn = 5 & Bk EX A9 10,000
5 IMIEED N AARE2S0TRAR
B0z EH ATARABRBEEERHEZ
EmekiRE - BMEZEOR—FHEER -

KRz @85

AEBELERSTEEY  METAEMHE
FHMBEEREZER MRS - 5T
R YREHABRE—FRER -

EAHMEBELIT-BFZRER
MR

RREAEEMREE - MBARZIE
BREEEFETEERERE R —F R

EROE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

29.

30.

Share Capital 29. B#&
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABIRAZEBFHBNOT :
Number of
shares Amount
ROHA MIE
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE MR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—tFE—-HF—A"
and 2018 (HK$0.005 each) B FR-FE-N\EF
+ZA=+—H(BKREE
0.005/%7T) 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 R Z-ZE—tF—HA—HLK
(HK$0.005 each) —E—+HF+-_HA=+—H
(=% T E0.0057% 7T) 1,602,586,500 8,013
Repurchase and cancellation of shares 17 K 5 sE R (P EE)
(note) (138,138,000) (691)
At 31 December 2018 (HK$0.005 each) RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
(5 i% E{E0.0058 L) 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB'000
ARBFT
Shown in the financial statements as RMB at RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 R ERERAAREZT 6,291
Shown in the financial statements as RMB at RZZE—tF+A=+—8H
31 December 2017 R BHRENAARE 27 6,884

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the general mandate
given to the directors of the Company, the Company repurchased
138,138,000 shares at prices ranging from HK$2.20 to HK$3.99 through the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration (including transaction costs) of
HK$484,659,000 (equivalent to RMB397,552,000) and all repurchased shares
were cancelled as at 31 December 2018. This cancellation resulted in the

decrease in issued share capital of HK$691,000 (equivalent to RMB5%3,000).

All ordinary shares of the Company issued during the period rank
pari passu in all respects.

Statutory Surplus Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital.

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG

DS

30.

%

REBEE-_Z—-N\E+-A=+—BILEE "
BERTAARESTZ —REE - AARR
Hé 22 By [3] 5 138,138,000% B 10+ BN T
2208 T E39B L BRE(BEXIHK
) 5484,659,0008 T (FHER AR
397,552,0007T) * FTEEBERHNKR=-F
—N\EF+ZA=+— A EESOE
1TRE AR 691,000 T (S W AR
593,0007T) °

B

A AR ARBRRTHEBRREHE
CESLECIES

EEBBRLARE
REBEFBIMNSREDCENBBER AR
B AR B A RZE SR B
B R B TE B 75 R o B R A B B4R 088 )
ZI%EBEEERARATECHEEFBR
EREMEARNS0% - EERBATEERT]
RERAEBEFENER(NE) - LA
BEMCBTERBER  FIITRZER
B R ERTELMERK25%IA L -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

31. Disposal of a Subsidiary 31. HE—RBMNEAF

The principal activity of Global Top is the operation of Wa San Mai TRz EEBAREBLEN=KAR
Japanese restaurant in Hong Kong. On 31 July 2018, the Group BE -RZ-—N\FEtA=1+—80 £&
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Vision Pilot Group 5] £ R 42 Bl B 2 2 & B 8 X R Vision Pilot
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifestyle International, to sell Group Limiteds] Z B E ik - L EHER
100% equity interest in the Global Top at the consideration of 100% ek - 3 & B 452,000,000/ 7T (4
HK$52,000,000 (approximately RMB43,841,000) in cash. The disposal AR #43,841,0007T) - HERXRHEREH
transaction was completed on the same date. The net assets of TR tERHERBR EEFENT

Global Top at the date of disposal were as follows:

RMB'000
ARBTT
Consideration received: EWKE :
Cash consideration received YIRS RE 43,841
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control RERGEZEEREBZSM:
was lost:
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) W BB KRR (M EE14) 849
Deferred tax assets (note 19) FEIERTBE E (H:E19) 401
Inventories e 500
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B SR e L A R LS R 1B 533
Bank balances and cash RTEEERE 9,404
Trade and other payables JE AT B R e HL A JE 5 SR 1B (9,076)
Taxation payable JE T IE (1,450)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 1,161
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—EWEARZWE :
Consideration received BRRE 43,841
Net assets disposed of BEHELEEFE (1,161)
Expense in respect of disposal HEFBRXZ (162)
42,518
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net assets of 74 2 Z< il /B8 /& &) 2 Il 1 B 35t P /28
the subsidiary reclassified from equity to capital reserves NREEZFERERENSHR
upon loss of control of the subsidiary ZERFBZRFEREZR 633
Gain on disposal (note) HEWZS (M) 43,151
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEERZHRESRAFHE
Cash consideration BERE 43,841
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B REZRITEFERS (9,404)
Expense in respect on disposal HERERX (162)
34,275
Note: As both Lifestyle International and the Company are under common control MEE - AR BIRR R AR B E 2808 St A AL A 1%
of Mr. Lau Luen Hung Thomas, in addition, Global Top, was a wholly #l BN R —RNFELRAEBIER L
owned subsidiary of Lifestyle International before the spin-off and separate LA e RAEEEc2EMBAR
listing of the Group in year 2016, the disposal of Global Top during the AR AFEHEHSARAEREREA
current year is accounted for as transaction with equity holder and the gain 2R 5 HEKGEARK43,151,0007T R E
on disposal of RMB43,151,000 is recognised in capital reserve as a KEBPHERRBREEEAZLE -

contribution from equity owner.
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-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

32. Operating Leases

32. EEMEYN

The Group as lessee KEBERAEBEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under FRARBLERNENZ
operating leases during the year: BIRTEAFUE ¢

Other assets HEMEE 1,102 1,526
Leasehold land and buildings BELHRET 136,225 133,656
137,327 135,182

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
RMB41,345,000 (2017: RMB45,947,000) contingent rents which was

based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

BHE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HILEE "
REEZRBEESTE LI NHAHRES A
AR¥E41,345000C (ZFE—EF : AR
45,947,0007T) e

RB|EHR - AEER T HEHLEHEDY
Z AR R R REROFIE(RREER

&) R T 5 F BB

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Within one year —F R 138,305 137,491
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZENF(BEEREMF) 554,720 553,452
Over five years BB AF 168,675 320,099
861,700 1,011,042

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing

commercial properties amounting to RMB861,157,000 (31 December
2017: RMB1,009,918,000) and other assets amounting of RMB543,000

(31 December 2017: RMB1,124,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

for leasing commercial properties and other assets which

represented machineries. Rentals payables are predetermined at

fixed amounts except for certain lease of which contingent rentals

are charged based on certain percentage of sales. Leases are

generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to five years

and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one year to two years

except the lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza from Shanghai

Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd. by Shanghai Ongoing Department Store

Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is for the
period from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2024, with an option
to renew for further ten years upon the request from Shanghai

Ongoing Department Store Limited in not less than twelve months

before the expiry of the lease terms.

x@®

OB —=_
gBBERE = /kﬁ%

LA AR EYEREREREIH
AR #861,157,000 (R=ZE—EF+=
A=+—8: ARK%1,009,918,0007T) & 5t
HMEES N ARBES43,000C(ZF—+
F+=-A=+—H: AR¥1,124,0007T) &9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

32.

33.

34.

Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

32.

RedEy (|
AEBEREBEA
REEMR - AEBERAFTO0E%
BIEHEHHERT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARBTT

Within one year —FR 50,548 51,175
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF (BREEEMSF) 48,577 54,648
Over five years i E 997 2,268
100,122 108,091

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
five years.

In addition, the Group contracted with its concessionaires to receive
contingent rentals based on the concessionaires’ turnover for terms
ranging from one year to two years.

HAO—RZRBAEMH-—EAFHHE -

SN AEBEESFEREIT LA A
HRHBE—EME  RETEELERK
WA AREE -

Capital and other Commitments 33. EXRKRHMAIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B EJHIMERRERE I BIREREHE 2
acquisition of property, plant and BHEBAYE BB RREUAR
equipment and property development MEBRRIEE 2 ERRAMASL
project contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 734,900 683,740

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
disclosed in note 26, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

L-‘iesw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. Financial Instruments 35. €T A
Categories of financial instruments SRIAER
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—LF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 23) EBAVEFABRZEREE
(M$5E23) 540,860 856,615
Financial assets measured at amortised cost Z#EK At EZ ¢ MEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEReRESSED) 1,781,657 1,521,624
Financial liabilities tEasE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised R IEK A E2 SR BE
cost 2,928,386 2,359,901
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEENRBE

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances and
cash, financial assets at FVTPL, lease receivables, dividend
receivable from an associate, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, amount due from (to) a joint venture, bank
borrowings and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances
at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in note 24.

The Group mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$. The
carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

AEBZTESMITABRERRITEBRNEE
T BMAVEFAERZEMEE  BY
HERE  BR—HBEQRRE B
FRAR S B A UK IR ~ B AR SR S B 8
30R - IR () —HABBERE -
RITEE AR B HE QA — & IF A
RPE - ZE2RMTAERES BMER
B mpEFeR T AMMZARMBRES
BERZBREN T - EEEGEER
BRI - ARE IR BB B RO R ER
EEEE

Brmpz
RRBRRPEEENHERR 25
BEABARE  BETRABIRZUARES
B RBEBLENMNBRARZNEERR
BT BRAMARGNETTEER -

g

i

BESRERR  AKEEE TIHINERE
EF o ARERIENM 24 E -

AEEXrZEHXTRETHBEER
B RNEMEHR - AEFBUINEEHEE
KEEFRmENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREBTT

Assets BE
us$ X7
HK$ ABTT

169,987 153,977
19,064 329,022

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

OB —=_
6&@%@5 . b /1 §5%
A #
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. €@ T A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2017: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2017:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and represents the
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5%
(2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

MEEREERHRBE (&)

E#m b (&)
TRHAVNAEERETRABTHAREZ
XA gE MRS (T —+ % : 5%) &%
BB ATA M B TR 2 U
B o5%(ZZT—+LF :5%) REEEBRAR
NEBERIINERBRAAZBEE - ABE
EEHSMNEE KA LA R B E) 2 FFh - 8
REDITERBARLBINEINEEE R
B YREHmERRLRSS (ZF—£5F:
5%)SNETE RSB T EILE - AR
BRSNS T®  BITRMIZEBRTF
PUREFIE - MARBEABRES L7t
AlewFNENEERSFERRZEE
BTRAIBFEREH -

2018 2017

—E-N\EF T —+tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R ARETTT

US$ against RMB ETHARE 6,374 5,774
HK$ against RMB BT ANRE 715 12,338

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed rate amount due from a joint
venture (2017: fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed-rate balances with
a joint venture). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk relating to the Group’s variable-rate loan receivables (2017:
variable-rate loan receivables) and bank borrowings (2017: variable-
rate bank borrowings). The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

china Group Limited Annual Repo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. ERT A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables and bank borrowings (excluding the specific bank
borrowings for construction purpose) at the end of the reporting
period and the reasonably possible change taking place at the
beginning of each year and held constant throughout the year. A 50
basis points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used for
variable-rate balances when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period while all other variables were held constant after taking into
account the impact of the tax and finance costs capitalised in
construction in progress and properties under development are as
follows:

B EREER N RBE (H)

FIEmE (&)

AEBEHRSRAERR 2 HEE - TIiR
BRREHRERERRRITEE (TR
FERTTERIFRERS) MEAR - ARk
REFFONREAEHROES  AN2
FHHTE -BRATEEEABRNIER
M= E B SOMEEEE (ZF—+4F : 50{@
EED) ENSOR D RNT B ARKRE
BEHMNXAEABEPNNMG - EMA
HthBH@H TR  REERBARNER
TREERTVEENMCBERARE - K
SENSHME PRGN EZERGFREMNT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-HLEE

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —E—+tF

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARETT

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the 4 IR 118 i F1128 hn Ol 2>)

year

— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRFEEFRH 479 479

— as a result of decrease in interest rate — BRI ETE (479) (479)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of the
inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2018 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

&@%@Em’z}ﬁ s
NG

DS

ERERA - BN ELE 2 BRI R
ERrEB  HEBEATLTREES
AR @R -

=B m R B EE
RZB-NFE+ZA=+—H Kx&EEH
HFTREBETHETMRES AR HER
TRMEERHZEREERR  HEAH
BHRRRMAZEEEZREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. £WMIA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EER R BUER (&)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) 1= B 7 e R al B 5718 ()
Trade receivables /’E %? AR
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has formulated a EREEERR  NEEE G ERRE
defined fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for Eﬁfaﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ&?ﬁ HANE HEEBER
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring ERE MEEEERETHMEER
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover f? ARRERESFHBHER BN E
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis, CAEBITEHETEURS LK
either in cash, debit card or credit card payments. The Group %TL:.FH%H JHETT c AEBRERTE
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon g mEERIE N2 - RBRTEAEEEE
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade R (Z2—tF  EEEEBEER) - F
receivable balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this R T R R 45 R M B TR (ELRT 1 - 3l DA
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's B AR ETRER & - #t - AR
credit risk is significantly reduced. RIEERR AKEZEERRD XER

Ao

Other receivables H it JEW K IE

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018
and considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. In
addition, credit risk associated with loan receivables of
RMB127,684,000 is mitigated because the loans are secured against
the certain share interests in Beiguo as held by the respective
debtors (note 20). The management has also assessed all available

ﬁ%ﬁ%l%fm@%ﬁz—%ﬁ'$%
BEENERAESY RS EAFIGR - R
BHEBEESBENXNETRET G A&
l%#:%—ﬂﬁ—ﬂ—a&:ﬁ—ﬂi
T A=+—BZHAEWRKE - @RI
Bt+-@AABEHEEEE Iwﬁﬁmﬁ
WsrE (W EEERE) 2RERETTE
RoWHERNBELEEBEBLR %Sy
FHEHAEMTA A AREBMREHRZ
BHEEBEITEK - i ARET
BB ER AFE 2 LB AR AIEH
(MF3E20) - #rdd A R#127,684,0007T 2 f&

forward looking information, including but not limited to the WE KAz EE R PR © #t
economic outlook of the PRC and subsequent settlement of the 25 T%EFZLZ']_I%’VEJ%&E EIRE IR
debtors, and concluded that the credit risk inherent in the Group's BEAEASZAEEER  2FEET
outstanding other receivables is insignificant. IKE)?/“:F‘ BB R UWREBAREEZ

Time deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks
are insignificant and accordingly no allowance for credit losses is
provided.

L-‘iesw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number

of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of amount due
from a joint venture. However, the directors considers the risks

associated with amount due from a joint venture is minimal.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

35. ER T A (&)
B EREER N RBE (K)

=B B B8 R 6 AT 1 ()
S B AR N B A B RIER B &
AREREERR  BBROBNRZZZZHE

FRES o

BEEW—HABELENE

REBAE

THEERR - AW EERR/BHEK
—fHAEEEFTRZABRRE -

AEEARBEERRIRFHEREATE

LWl

Trade receivables

Other financial assets/
other items

Hitbem&EE
NESE G ot FE 2 BR K HAi1E B
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
K& R and does not have any past-due credit-impaired + B ATEEME E 18
amounts KATEHEEER
HFEFENRRE ITREMOHSE — WEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates  Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
BRaE but usually settle after due date credit-impaired +ZEREREEEBRE
BEBALERIEIRZENR  BERERE XKAEHREEEIE
HRR&EE — WREERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in  Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
RER credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed KATBHEEEE KATBHEEEE
internally or external resources or — TEEERE — WEEERE
overdue by 30 days or above
RIBA I E R B INBEIREUSH)
BERETR  FERREB MRERARK
8380 > SEAI30 B S A |
Loss There is evidence indicating the assetis  Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
&8 credit-impaired or overdue by 90 days impaired impaired
or above KATEEEEEE KATEHEEEE
BBRELEECHRESRE o —S2FEERE —EBEERE
90H A £
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
i 8 debtor is in severe financial difficulty © FE B M © B M
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
BEEBELEBALREAMBHEE -
i 7% 65 [ I 4 R AT B U [ SRR
L aREARAD Sa
A T




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
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35. €@ T A (&)

MEEREERHRBE (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) = E B R A E T ()
TRFAVAEE R EE R EKEERE
ZEERE - HAFEREEBENG -

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets and lease receivables which are subject to ECL

assessment:
External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying
2018 Notes rating rating lifetime ECL amount
TZEASHKAR
—E-NEF M IBEEER RBEEIR EHEERSE REAE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHERATEZEREE
Bank balances and cash 24 A (Aa1-A3) N/A 12-month ECL —
RITHEERER S TiE A (not credit-impaired)
T+ EAEREEEE —
(W EEERE) 864,649
B (Baal1-B1) N/A 12-month ECL —
TiE A (not credit-impaired)
T EAEHEEEE —
(I |EERE) 671,732
1,536,381
Trade receivables — goods and 20 N/A Low risk (note b) Lifetime ECL —
services A KRk (Fistb) (not credit-impaired)
JEWAR X — & i KBRS KATEBREEEE —
(W mEERE) 60,801
Trade receivables — operating 20 N/A (note ¢) Lifetime ECL —
leases receivables A GET) (provision matrix)
FEWER R — B 2 E KATEHEEEE —
(B fEpesE) 6,321
N/A Loss (note d) Credit-impaired
TEA 18 (B 5Ed) BEfEERE 1,253
7,574
estv'e china Group Limited  Annual e, 2075
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for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35. ERT A (&)
B EREER N RBE (H)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EEE R A EE ()
External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying
2018 Notes rating rating lifetime ECL amount
+ZEAHKAR
—ZE-N\F Ht HBEEIR ABEETIR EHEEER RE#AE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)
REBERTTECZEBEE (8)
Other receivables 20 N/A (note a) 12-month ECL —
H fth fE YR IB T E A CGEE)) (not credit-impaired)
+ZEAEREEEE —
(A E|EERE) 147,998
N/A Loss (note a) Lifetime ECL —
TEA &1 (FisEa) (credit-impaired)
KATEHEEBE —
(BEERE) 22,253
170,251
Amounts due from a joint venture 22 N/A (note a) 12-month ECL —
Bl —EEaErEZKE TEA (fizEa) (not credit-impaired)
TEAEREEEE —
(T MEERE) 30,584
RAE —=
é&@%gﬁﬂ . §\4§“
e %




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes:

(@)

35. £WMIA (&)
BEEREER MR ECE (E)

=B A fg R E E TG ()

B 5T
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past (a) HABEERBREEENME - AKEEA
due information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly BEERHEEERR B TRERARES
since initial recognition. BRI N -
Past due Not past due Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Amounts due from a joint venture B —BEa B FE — 30,584 30,584
Other receivables (note) Ho At AR FROE (BTRE) 22,253 147,998 170,251
Note: At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018, impairment loss of Mz R Bt F+-A=+—HBE=Z
RMB22,253,000 had been recognised on significant other —N\E—A—R Excaiiia
receivables balance which was past due over 90 days. 90H Z B A H h fE U FRIB 4 SR TE R
AR ¥22,253,0007T 2 A B 1E
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss allowances that has TREFNEREMBRFIARER 2 EIBEE
been recognised for other receivables: ZHER
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
12-month ECL impaired) impaired) Total
KAFEH
FEER KATEH
+T=EAED (LEEE FEBR
FEBR wE) (BEFEERE BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2017 RZZF—tF+=A
(under HKAS 39), 1 January 2018 =+—HAREEE
and 31 December 2018 B ERIE395%) -
—E-N\F-A—-HRK
—Z-N\F+_-H
=+—H — — 22,253 22,253
For trade receivables for goods and services, the Group has applied the (b) HEMERBZ BBRERTS - AEEERE
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 and assessed the loss allowance of lifetime REBUBRELENESR P 2 BT %
ECL on an individual basis. RAARIFHE K AR EE B 2 BREE -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided BHE-_ZT—)\F+=-A=+—HLEFE " K
RMB304,000 allowance for credit losses on trade receivables for goods and EBDIRERE  MERERREEHZIE
services based on individual assessments. I BR SRR A R #5304,0007T 2 {5 E B 18
o
For trade receivables for operating leases receivables, the Group has (0 MEWELTHENERERERMS  AEEE
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance JERE BT EIRELERNEF B 2 &b
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or 5 RTEKATEHEERBZEBERE - K
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on these BEEREHIEDEBEEREZEB A
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal credit rating. Hh o REBBRNIEETRNE  CHEE
EEpEEEE TR EEEE -
ina Group Limited Annual
estv'e cn Report 2058

P o144 §



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. ERT A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(o) (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided
RMB124,000 allowance for credit losses on trade receivables for operating
leases receivables based on the provision matrix grouped by internal credit

rating and past due status.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over three years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of
the trade receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement

activities.

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2018, allowance for credit losses of
RMB1,253,000 was made on trade receivables for operating lease

receivables with credit-impaired debtors.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had available
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately RMB341 million (31
December 2017: RMB1,075 million). Details of bank borrowings are
set out in note 26.

Based on the above, the directors of the Company considers the
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows to the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. €e®MI A (@|E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EER R BUR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB RFE AR
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH RER/ =R FERRS
EBAZE  -@ANT -EZfA B-F -En% AENE hEEH REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2018 RZB-NF+=A=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 ¢BAE
Trade and other payables ERERREMERTE - 761,488 - - - - 761,488 761,488
Amount due to a non-controlling ERKBAR-BEERRE
shareholder of subsidiaries IHE - - - - 44,296 - 44,296 44,296
Bank borrowings — variable rate PITEE — 2BT%
(note 26) (Figr2e) 441 7,900 15,034 80,074 1,682,282 849,802 2,635,092 2,109,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER—HRECENE - 13,602 - - - - 13,602 13,602
782,990 15,034 80,074 1,726,578 849,802 3,454,478 2,928,386
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 3months Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Tmonth  1-3months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEF3 REL/ =fEA FERRE
ERFE  —@EANT -Z=fEA E-f ik REME RELE RAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTT ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARET:
31 December 2017 RZZ-tE+ZB=+-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 ¢ BAE
Trade and other payables EREIREMENTE — 848,329 1739 — — — 850,068 850,068
Amount due to a non-controlling ERHEAR—EFEERRR
shareholder of subsidiaries 2B — - - - 89,795 - 89,795 89,795
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITEE— 2%
(note 26) (Mizk26) 441 5151 9,803 50,693 442,752 1,188,033 1,696,432 1,375,202
Amount due to a joint venture ER-FAaEREHA — 44,83 — — — — 44,83 44,83
898,316 11,542 50,693 532,547 1,188,033 2,681,131 2,359,901

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments

for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes

in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates

as determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Price risk
The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
price risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. Details of the
financial assets at FVTPL are set out in note 23. The Group's
sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets at FVTPL (listed equity

35. ERT A (&)

B EREER N RBE (H)

B meE

AEBURAFEFABREZEBREENTR
EHRARNTEE - At - REE@H
ERER - E2ERERE TRARR

PR EBAKERHAR - LATFEA
183 7 S RAE N SRR E23 o £ X
BB TET - AEER RS R

securities in Hong Kong) at the end of the reporting period while all BRATVEFAER 2 eMEE (REELM
other variables were held constant is as follows: WRE) 2 BREBRBERENT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
Reasonably possible change in price Bz AR E 5% 5%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTTT
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit F AR & & FE o0 O )
for the year
— as a result of increase in price — BN ER L — 2,667
— as a result of decrease in price — AR ER TR — (2,667)
The management considered the remaining balance of financial ERERREATFEFNANEBERZZERMEE
assets at FVTPL (structured investment products) which are RIER T 2 8k (BRI EE M) mEER
subjected to price risk is minimal. [E P I S E K o
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIAZAFEFE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the BRTERMIIIN - RRREZSRBEE B

Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at the end of each
reporting period:

BRPREBERATENSREERS R
BEMETEERS ERSHHROQF
[=REES

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E-N\F+ZA=+—-H8 | ZE—tF+=ZA=1+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AFEE BRI A ~EE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®¥T AREFT AREFT
Financial liabilities SEAsE
Amount due to non- FEAHHT B A R IEFE AR
controlling shareholder %3 K8
of subsidiaries 44,296 42,426 89,795 86,002
E/\—J -
6&@%@5\3 _ i /1§5§\
A #




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. €e®MI A (@|E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued) SRIBECAFENEE)
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at REEETHLREELETERS HRE
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives BATERFE TREHBEBEWEEEE
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are HEmEENATE(LERGEEREME
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs R ALE) WEHR -
used).
Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
ATE
CREE ATER ZREE HEFZNETERANSE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F T+
+=A +=A
=+-8 | =+-A
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL
RATEGFABBECEREE
1. Listed equity securities — 71,115 Level1 Quoted bid prices in an active
FHRE EHh— markets.
RRRTISRNEARE

2. Structured investment products 540,860 785,500 Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future
ERUEREER £ cash flows are estimated
based on expected return,
discounted at a rate that
reflects the risk of underlying
investments.

FRALR  ERBHERER
MR ERBFIRTE - 78

SARKE R
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during both years. ESEREFHRHE FH—NER_2H

I AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

36. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing 36. HBEEEBELXNEBYHER
Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAVNAEEREMEETDHEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 OERSRFREH MEFTH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EXNEESEDANEAEEFER S
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's MEXRTDHERAMETEZESN -
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.
Amount due
to a non-
controlling
shareholder
Bank Interest of
borrowings payables subsidiaries Total
B E
DNEFER
BITEE BARE RERFIEA B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT AR®BTRT ARETT ARETET
(note 26) (note 25) (note 28)
(B 3E26) (B 3E25) (Bi3E28)
At 1 January 2017 M-E—tF—A—AH 1,085,136 1,332 89,690 1,176,158
Dividend declared B2 E IR E — — 114,450 114,450
Interest accrued FTRRFLE — 3,344 — 3,344
Capitalised borrowing cost & b B g B A A — 50,625 — 50,625
Net financing cash inflow BMEEHRBAA
(outflow) Ot i) F#88 290,066 (53,448) (114,345) 122,273
At 31 December 2017 RZZT—+LF
+=—A=+—H 1,375,202 1,853 89,795 1,466,850
Dividend declared B EIREE — — 104,145 104,145
Capitalised borrowing cost &AL EIEE KA — 77,832 — 77,832
Net financing cash inflow MEEHRES R
(outflow) (i) 388 733,798 (77,001) (149,644) 507,153
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+-A=1+—48 2,109,000 2,684 44,296 2,155,980
Pledge of Assets 37. EEEN

37.

—E- )\ F+ZA=t—-RLLFE

At 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain of the Group's
(i) property, plant and equipment in the PRC of RMB2,337 million
(31 December 2017: RMB1,813 million), (i) prepaid lease payments

in the PRC with carrying value of approximately RMB1,772 million
(31 December 2017: RMB1,821 million) and (iii) properties under
development with carrying value of approximately RMB1,044 million
(31 December 2017: RMB924 million) to secure bank borrowings of
the Group with carrying value of approximately RMB2,109 million

(2017: RMB1,375 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

38. Related Party Disclosure

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

38. F4

BEALTHEE

BRGREMBREREMADEEN A%

statements, the Group had the following transactions with related BHEEATETU IS
parties:
(a) Transactions (@ X3
During the year, the Group had entered into the following FR - REEETHEATET
significant transactions with the following related parties. THEBARRS °
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Nature of related parties transactions HEALTRSHME
() Rental and management fee to () ZNFEBAEHRTES
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., BRAR(MEAELED
Ltd. (“Property JV") Z2HERERE 196,309 200,045
(i) Interest income from Property JV (i) REWELSERRFHE
WA 1,070 1,065
(i) Rental expenses to subsidiaries of (i) 321 T Il 1@ BIBR #9 Y &8 A &)
Lifestyle International Z e (ME3)
(note 3) 5,938 10,244
(iv) Gross proceed from a subsidiary of  (iv) 2k & F| 48 Bl BX —RIK1 B A A
Lifestyle International in relation S E—FHMME AR Z S
to disposal of a subsidiary FIALRTE
(note 3) (B$5E3) 43,841 —
(v) Rental income from subsidiaries of  (v) KB =ERiZR (£E) R A
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. A =8% 1) (B 78 ) 1@ th =
Ltd. (“Sansheng”) (formerly BERARAR ([FEHE])
known as Lifestyle Properties ORI izl N
Development Limited (“Lifestyle (fF7E2124))
Properties”)
(notes 2 and 4)) — 164
(vi) Project management expensestoa (vij X F=BE—REMNEBAR 2
subsidiary of Sansheng EREREXH
(notes 2 and 4) (MF7E254) —_ 3,370
(vii) Rental and management fee from  (vii) 2R B — R & QA RINHES
an associate REEBWA 9,356 10,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 H & — %

38.

39.

—NF+_A=+—HBILtFE

Related Party Disclosure (continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)

Notes:

Q] The Group's related party transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the
contracting parties.

2) The counterparties were subsidiaries of Sansheng, of which Mr. Lau
Luen Hung, Thomas, was chairman of the Board and non-executive
director.

3) The counterparty is a subsidiary of Lifestyle International of which
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is a controlling shareholder.

4) The transactions ceased to be related party transactions after the
resignation of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, as chairman of the
Board and non-executive director of Sansheng on 31 May 2017.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors being the key management
personnel, was determined by the remuneration committee of
the Company having regard to the performance of the
individuals and market. Details of which together with the
other four (2017: four) highest paid employees are disclosed in
note 11 above.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is required to
contribute and recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group
with respect to these schemes are to make the specified
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay in
accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above
mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately
RMB6.8 million (2017: RMB7.7 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. T EMBRAFHE
R NFR-B—LF+A=+—
B ARBZEEMBRARFENT :

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MEARN—RER

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a)

Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share Attributable equity interest

Name of company establishment and operation capital/registered capital of the Group Principal activities
DMALRE XD
AAEH AR R A B 5 BRTRES/ERRA REBESLER TREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-N\E “BtF ZE2-N\F B4
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$62,050,000 HK$62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
("Ample Sun Group") 17 August 2007 62,050,000/ 7T 62,050,000/ T REER
#REEERAA ("HREE") 5
ZERLE\ATHH
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited  The PRC US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 65% 65%  Retailing business
("Shanghai Ongoing")* 26 July 2004 12,000,000% 12,000,000% T TEEH
TEARBRERAA (" LEAK")* e
ZEIMELAZFA
Wingold Limited ("Wingold") Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
EeBRAR("EE") 20 April 2007 10,000 7t 10,0007 7T REARR
&k
“ERLENACTA
MREBEES (L8 BRAF The PRC RMB2,500,000,000 RMB2,500,000,000 100% 100%  Property
23 April 2012 AR%2,500,000,0007 | AR P2,500,000,0007 development
i NEER
“E-CFMACT=H
BN SRR ARAT The PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
31 March 2012 AR%15,000,0007C AR 150000007 TERK
T
—3--%=f=1+-H
FBSRELERAT The PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Retailing business
1 December 2006 AK#710,090,3927¢ ARE7100903927 TEEK
hE
ZERRET2A-R
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co., Limited The PRC RMB683,955,600 RMB683,955,600 100% 100%  Retailing business
FIRRESS (&M) BRA A 1 March 2007 ARH683,955,6007 | AR 6839556007 TERH
i
“ER+EZf-H
MEHE (KE) BRAR The PRC US$45,000,000 15$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
9 October 1993 45,000,000% 7T 45,000,000% ¢ TERK
T
“WAZETANE

*k

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

at the end of both reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

40.

FEMBQAFE (&)

(a)

(b)

MEARN—RER (&)
ERANRILEERR/TIBFEAR
SEEXELEEZARTNMBR
A BEEZRR RHEMMBARE
HegyFaR-

BREAFEZRESNFZENE
AL
TRINTEBEEAGFERERNA
SESEREMBARNFE

interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Place of incorporation and and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business Notes non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FEREEZEAER
WEARER RIBHRIBEEMY i3 FERERLA ARFFERERHER it ERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\F It 2 —B-N\E It S ZE-0\F —E3-tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFIL ARBTR NS
Wingold Hong Kong (i) 40% 40% 122,300 103,745 1,120,712 988,726
Shanghai Ongoing The PRC (ii) 35% 35% 98,182 99,025 152,340 153,184
i:Y/8 7 EF
Ample Sun Group Hong Kong (iii) 40% 40% 9,326 12,166 214,627 212485
HREE &R
229,808 214936 1,487,679 1,354,395

=1 NE] —=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 HZE — T — \F+ A=+ —BILFE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b)
material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set

out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

(i)

40. FEMBA R FH1E (H)

BEEAFEZERESNFEZENE
RENFFE (8
ERASEERAEASFERERZ
MEBARCHBEERBEEIIAT -
NTEIZHBERMERERA
ARIAEHEATH SR

Wingold (i) #Z
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E A
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTR AREFTT
Current assets mENEE 144,438 176,666
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,800,950 2,552,426
Current liabilities nBBE 37,648 32,928
Non-current liabilities IERBAE 105,959 224,349
Equity attributable to owners of RATIHEE NELER
the Company 1,681,069 1,483,089
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R = 1,120,712 988,726
Income A 306,255 259,881
Expenses Fx 505 518
Profit and total comprehensive REFHMNREE K ER
income for the year 305,750 259,363
Profit and total comprehensive RATBHEE ANEIE RN R2E
income attributable to owners of U zx 42 %58
the Company 183,450 155,618
Profit and total comprehensive R (RN R 2 E
income attributable to the W 4B %8
non-controlling interests 122,300 103,745
Profit and total comprehensive NEEm A R 2w A58
income for the year 305,750 259,363
Net cash outflow from operating A& HENFTEER
activities B F (5,019) (2,691)
Net cash inflow from investing REFEEMEER
activities Be R AFE 76,744 29,802
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BEERIAMEEN
financing activities Be Ord) mAFHE (114,104) 3
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORd) RAERE (42,379) 27,114
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 40. T EMBE R EIFE (&)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) HEERFERERZNIEZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i)  Shanghai Ongoing (i) _EFRAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBEFIT
Current assets MENEE 1,029,815 1,038,270
Non-current assets ERBEE 33,359 41,471
Current liabilities nEEE 627,917 642,073
Equity attributable to owners of ZAYNSIE YEN g
the Company 282,917 284,484
Non-controlling interests IR R HE == 152,340 153,184
Income WA 923,046 915,460
Expenses il 2 642,527 632,531
Profit and total comprehensive REEHENRE2EK @A
income for the year 280,519 282,929

Profit and total comprehensive RARIEA ARG RN E2E
income attributable to owners of W45

the Company 182,337 183,904
Profit and total comprehensive IR ERER RN REE

income attributable to the e 48 58

non-controlling interests 98,182 99,025
Profit and total comprehensive RE R T R 2 a5

income for the year 280,519 282,929
Net cash inflow from operating KRB PTE AR

activities WEMAFEE 207,266 196,676
Net cash inflow from investing REEBELERN

activities REm A FRE 20,592 13,569
Net cash outflow from financing A& JE ) P EE AR Y

activities Wem it F58 (274,817) (260,338)
Net cash outflow RE ML FE (46,959) (50,093)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

(b)

2-NEF+=

A=+—RHLLFE

material non-controlling interests (continued)
(iij) Ample Sun Group

40.

TEMBEARFE (&)
(b) WEEAFZRBENIEZEMNE

NGRS N¢ )
(i) #ZREH

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTT
Current assets MENEE 13,535 18,690
Non-current assets ERBEE 533,274 512,635
Current liabilities nBBE 10,241 113
Equity attributable to owners of RAREA NEEER
the Company 321,941 318,727
Non-controlling interests IEIERE S 214,627 212,485
Income WA 34,129 40,236
Expenses Bz 10,813 9,821
Profit and total comprehensive N E R R 2 E W R 4R
income for the year 23,316 30,415
Profit and total comprehensive RAREAANEE RN EEE
income attributable to owners of WX z5 44 %58
the Company 13,990 18,249
Profit and total comprehensive FEF2E R M 25 A M 2
income attributable to the Yk
non-controlling interests 9,326 12,166
Profit and total comprehensive REEHMNREE K =ERE
income for the year 23,316 30,415
Net cash outflow from operating ~ #& & EB) AT E £ 1Y
activities WE ML FRE (659) (63)
Net cash inflow from investing S B E B ATE A/
activities BEARNFEE 13,475 51,258
Net cash outflow from financing BB BB FTE AW
activities B mL FEE (12,800) (51,205)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BERACRL) F58 16 (10)

\_-‘iesw\e
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the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

41. ARARHMBEMRRERRREE

R|EHR - AARFBIRRERER B

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI ENGIE 6,903,359 7,248,134
Amount due from a subsidiary (note a) fEUY — R B A R B (M Rta) 78,000 —
6,981,359 7,248,134
Current assets MBNEE
Other receivables H b fE U R 8 215 232
Amount due from a subsidiary (note b) e Uk — R BT B A Al 78 (M sEb) 196,312 18
Bank balances and cash RITEFNRS 8,746 3,752
205,273 4,002
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H fth &< 58 12,356 11,107
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) T B A A #E (B sEc) 362,142 23,201
Tax payable FERBERK 743 —
375,241 34,308
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (169,968) (30,306)
6,811,391 7,217,828
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital & A< 6,291 6,884
Reserves (note d) s (HaEd) 6,805,100 7,210,944
6,811,391 7,217,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —Z —\F+_A=+—HILFE

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of
the Company (continued)
Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows:

41.

ARABERHNT

RA TR TR ()

Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B 175 8 EotRE REE %A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTRT AREFT ARBTE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—HF—H 6,940,091 480 288,938 7,229,509
Loss and total AEEEBEERZEZ T
comprehensive expenses R
for the year — — (18,565) (18,565)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+=A
=+—H 6,940,091 480 270,373 7,210,944
Loss and total AEEBEREZESZ S
comprehensive expenses R
for the year — — (8,885) (8,885)
Repurchase of shares O] B iZ 15 (396,959) — — (396,959)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=A
=+—H 6,543,132 480 261,488 6,805,100

Notes: B 5

(a) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, carried fixed rate of (a) FEU — T B A B 2 RIE A EEER - BFI%
4.50% per annum and repayable in March 2021. EE S E4S0EFE  WHEHRZZEZ—F=

REE-

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, carried fixed rate of (b) R —FEM B AR 2 B AEER  BF%
4.30% (2017: nil) per annum and repayable within twelve months from the EFESE40E(CE—LF  8)HE U
end of the reporting period. ARRERREF T ZEARNEE -

(@ The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest-bearing, and (0) M BARREREEE  2ENERE
repayable on demand. SR ER -

(d) The Company'’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2018 (d) RZZBE—N\F+ZA=+—8  AQFA[#H
consisted of share premium, merger reserve and retained profits of DIRFEEBERGEE - & OHEERRR R
RMB6,805,100,000 (2017: RMB7,210,944,000). FIA R #6,805,100,0007C (Z & —+4F : A

R #7,210,944,0007T) °
.o Group Limited Anp
\;\iesw‘e china nual Repoyy 2018

p 15 §



Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEEERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E “T—t% NS “T-1% “T-lmE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFI AREFL AREFL AREFI
Turnover 1 1,183,752 1,222,785 1,132,287 1,123,961 1,078,628
Profit attributable to owners NI =N A
of the Company bl 338,074 269,590 278,038 248,964 258,392
Earnings per share (RMB) SREM(ARE)
— Basic —HXK 0.222 0.168 0173 0.155 0.161
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE2-N\F “F—tF Ik SN ZZ-hf ZE-RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 13,744,799 13,051,300 12,344,395 11,720,331 10,656,139
Total liabilities BlEEE 3,194,851 2,630,052 2,289,094 8,980,068 8,016,630
Net assets BEFE 10,549,948 10,421,248 10,055,301 2,740,263 2,639,509
Non-controlling interests FERREER 1,487,679 1,354,395 1,253,909 1,118,399 967,994
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEEFE 9,062,269 9,066,853 8,801,392 1,621,864 1,671,515
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.20 6.50 627 171 165
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.19 5.66 549 101 1.04
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1,02,586500 1602586500 1602586500  1,602,586,500
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Property under development BRPYE
Attributable
Gross Site Nature of  interestto  Category Stage of Expected
floor area area property  the Group of lease completion completion Lot number
KEH
AREER GRER 0 PEME EAEE  HEEERN 0 THRRR 0 BRRI 0 RBGR
sq.m. sq.m.
A Fhk
Property under development, 348,337 50,154 Commercial 100% Medium Under 2019 2012-33
33Qiy, 312 Jiefang, [GES ] development
Daning Road, BRH

Jing'an District,

Shanghai, PRC
PEEETHRREAEHE

32EYBEZERPNE

mgme
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LlfCSt le China Group Limited
Moo B E AR A A

Lifestyle China Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

MNEFEEESRLIF
(RPSBEEMRIMERAR)
&SRS fEFFESS5%
RAFL208

Tel EE: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{E&: (852) 2838 2030

Email EF: info@lifestylechina.com.hk
www.lifestylechina.com.hk

FSC

wwnwfsc.org

MIX
Paper from responsible sources
REARENRNE RN ER
FSC™ C102068
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